
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Dr Helen Paterson, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Rebecca Greally 
Email: 
democraticservices@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622616 
Date: Friday, 16 June 2023 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC 
GROWTH OSC to be held in CONFERENCE ROOM 2, COUNTY HALL, MORPETH, 
NORTHUMBERLAND, NE61 2EF on MONDAY, 26 JUNE 2023 at 10.00 AM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
 
Dr Helen Paterson 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC members as follows:- 

D Bawn (Chair), J Beynon, L Dunn (Vice-Chair), P Jackson, N Oliver, A Wallace, C Taylor, 
M Robinson, P Ezhilchelvan and L Grimshaw 

Portfolio Holder: R Wearmouth 

 



 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Committee is asked to note the following membership and terms of 
reference for the Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC which 
were agreed by Council on 17 May 2023.  
  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  
  
Membership  
  
10 Members (5:3:1 Ind Gp, 1 LD)(LD place given to ING)   
  
Quorum – 3  
  
Chair: D. Bawn  
  
Vice Chair: L. Dunn  
  

Conservativ
e  

Labour  Independen
t Group  
  

Liberal 
Democrats
  

Green 
Party  

Ind Non-
Groupe
d  

D. Bawn  L. Dunn  C. Taylor      M. 
Robinso
n  

J. Beynon  L. 
Grimshaw
  

        

P. 
Ezhilchelvan  

A. 
Wallace  

        

P. Jackson            
N. Oliver            

  
  
          Terms of reference:   
(1)                 To maintain an overview of the Council’s Annual Budget 
and Budgetary Management via the Medium Term Financial Plan.   
(2)          To review the state of Northumberland and the County Council’s 
activity in delivering its Corporate Plan.   
(3)          To maintain an overview of the Council’s performance 
management arrangements; highlighting areas of poor performance and 
monitoring recovery delivery plans.   
(4)          To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in 

 



 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

place between the Council and Advance Northumberland.   
(5)          To monitor, review and make recommendations about:   
  
  

·       Corporate Services: Organisational Development, Health and 
Safety, ICT Strategy, Corporate Governance, Financial Services, 
Procurement Strategy, Risk Strategy, Shared and Traded 
Services   

·       Partnership development coordination with local organisations     
·       Relationships with external bodies   
·       Regeneration and Economic Development   
·       Strategic Transport Network and Infrastructure   
·       Employability, Skills, and removing barriers to work   
·       Capital Programme and Asset Management   
·       Support to VCS organisations and the Council’s relationship with 

town and parish councils. 
  
  

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
3.   MINUTES 

 
Minutes of the meetings of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth 
OSC held on 17th April 2023, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

(Pages 
1 - 6) 

 
4.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting; 
  

a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set out in 
Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where 
members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is 
being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.  

 
b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 

Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members of 
the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not 
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain the 
room. 
  

c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is not 
DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare 
the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the 
public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take part 
in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 
  

d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 
associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column 
in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 9 
of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting. 

 



 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

  
e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 

Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer 
and arrange for somebody else to deal with it. 
  

NB Any member needing clarification must 
contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Members are 
referred to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. 
Please refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda 
letter. 
  

5.   FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS 
 
To note the decisions of Cabinet since the previous meeting of the OSC 
and the latest Forward Plan of key decisions.  Any further changes made 
to the Forward Plan will be reported to the Committee.  
 

(Pages 
7 - 14) 

 
6.   PRESENTATIONS FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ON 

FORTHCOMING ISSUES 
 
To receive an overview from the relevant Portfolio Holders and Executive 
Directors on forthcoming issues within the remit of the Committee and to 
discuss with the members how they can collaborate to achieve the 
Council’s priorities, including opportunities for pre-decision scrutiny where 
the OSC can be consulted at an early stage. 
 

(Pages 
15 - 18) 

 
7.   FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2022-23 – POSITION AT THE END OF 

FEBRUARY 2023 (PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2022-23) 
 
The report which was considered at Cabinet on 9th May 2023 informed 
Cabinet of the provisional outturn position for the Council against the 
Budget for 2022-23. Due to the timing of the statutory accounts deadline 
the forecast provisional outturn was based on the position at the end of 
February.  
 
Cabinet members approved the recommendations and noted the relevant 
information. 
 

(Pages 
19 - 88) 

 
8.   DEBT RECOVERY UPDATE 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee with information 
relating to the level of outstanding debt owed to the Council so that the 
Committee may satisfy itself as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its 
collection and recovery policies and systems.  
  
Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services is required to attend for this item. 
  
REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 

 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee is asked to review and note the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
for the 2023/24 council year. 
 

(Pages 
89 - 94) 

 
10.   URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY) 

 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, 
by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 
 

 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 26 June 2023 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 26 June 2023 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 26 June 2023 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 

 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 26 June 2023 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC GROWTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
At a meeting of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held in the Council Chamber, County Hall, Morpeth, NE61 2EF on Monday, 17 
April 2023 at 10.00 am. 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor E. Dunn 
(Vice Chairman in the Chair) 

 
 

COUNCILLORS 
  

Beynon, J. 
Ezhilchelvan, P. 
Oliver, N. 
 

Robinson, M. 
Taylor, C. 
Wallace, A. 
 

 
        
 

OFFICERS 
  

 
 
 

Gardner, K. Senior Service Director 
Greally, R. 
 
Nicholson, S. 
Willis, J. 
 

Assistant Democratic Services 
Officer 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
Executive Director of Finance 
(Section 151 Officer) 

  
 

 1 member of the press was in attendance. 
 
 

46. APOLOGIES 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors David Bawn, Mary Murphy and Richard 
 Wearmouth. 
 
 
47. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 13 March 2023, as 
circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chairman. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 17 April  2023     2 
 

 
 

 
 
48. FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS 

 
The Forward Plan of forthcoming Key Cabinet decisions was reported to the 
Committee.  (Report enclosed with the signed minutes as Appendix A). 

 
 

RESOLVED that the Forward Plan of key decisions be noted. 
 
 

50.  BEST: DELIVERY PARTNERS RESOURCING 
 

Councillor Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council, introduced the report to the 
Committee which had been agreed at the Cabinet meeting on 11 April 2023. Kelly 
Gardner, Senior Service Director was also present to answer members questions. 

 
The detailed report outlined the resource needed to design, deliver and implement 
the BEST programme. The programme would ensure the Council worked in a way 
which was value for money. It was a whole Council approach and would listen to all 
staff from all levels. It was confirmed that there would be senior member 
representation on the board, and it was suggested that the portfolio holder for 
corporate services would take a lead on this.  

 
The following comments were made in response to members questions:- 

 
• It was confirmed that the Committee would receive regular updates regarding 

progress on the programme. Members would also be able to request deep 
dive reports should they want to examine particular aspects of the 
programme in greater detail. 

• Members were assured that all work streams in the programme had key 
performance indicators and project managers who would monitor them. It 
was acknowledged the importance of assessing financial and non-financial 
benefits from the programme.  

• There would be specific investments needed throughout the programme but 
all 39 projects had detailed business cases. The programme had been 
designed to be self-funding and therefore there was no reason to propose 
that the £9 million would not be sufficient. £2.4 million of the £9 million had 
been committed already which left £6.7 million to be used when necessary.  

• The need to work with all staff was recognised. Officers confirmed that the 
programme had already started to engage with staff to become ambassadors 
and had received a lot of interest. A soft launch of the programme was 
scheduled for Wednesday 19th Aprils where staff would have the opportunity 
to engage with executives and project leads.  

• It was acknowledged that the project was a massive undertaking which was 
why it was important to source external consultants and partners to ensure 
the specialist knowledge needed to design, deliver and embed the 
programme was there. It was also confirmed that it was expected that staff 

Page 2



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 17 April  2023     3 
 

would benefit from the consultant’s knowledge through working with the 
delivery partner as well as a learning and organisational development 
programme.  

 
RESOLVED that the programme continued to be monitored throughout its progress. 

 
55. FINANCIAL PERFORMACE 2022-23: POSITION AT THE END OF DECEMBER 

2022 
 
 Jan Willis, Executive Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), was present to 

respond to member’s questions. The report outlined the position of the Council at 
the end of December 2022 against the budget for 2022-23. 

 
 The following comments were made in response to members questions:- 
 

• It was confirmed that the overspend in adult social care was being closely 
monitored and the situation had started to stabilise.  

• Children’s Services was a demand led service and it was acknowledged that 
all local authorities were experiencing similar pressures due to inflation. 
Preliminary work had already been done through the BEST programme to 
contain those pressures. The new executive director for children’s services 
had also brought proposals forward to combat the pressures. 

• It was acknowledged that the Council usually predict an underspend in the 
budget however this year there would be an overspend. However, it was 
acknowledged that the overspend was minimal. The Council had 
experienced intense inflationary pressures from such things as energy prices 
and the pay award. 

• Recruitment and retention of staff was being examined through the BEST 
programme. There were several workstreams which were managing this. It 
was also acknowledged that the job market was improving and more people 
were returning to work. 

• It was agreed that Committee would receive details of the capital programme 
planning in the future as there was scope for improvement. 

 
RESOLVED  that the information was noted.  

 
 
 
 
55. WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Committee received an update on its Work Programme for the 2022/23 council 
year.   
 
Members were reminded that the BEST programme would bring 6 monthly updates 
on the progress and they could request deep dives on any of the BEST programme 
projects. 
. 

  
RESOLVED that this information was noted.   

Page 3



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 17 April  2023     4 
 

 
 
 
56. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC    
   

RESOLVED that    
    
(a) under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 

public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following 
item on the Agenda as it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act, and   

       
(b) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest 

in disclosure for the following reasons:-    
    

Agenda Item    
    
Paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A      
       

10    3 - Contains information relating to business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information).      
      

AND    The public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the interest in disclosure because disclosure 
could adversely affect the business reputation or 
confidence in the person/organisation, and could 
adversely affect commercial revenue    

 
 
 

 
57. TRADING COMPANIES FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

Jan Willis, Executive Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), introduced the report 
to committee. The report gave committee an update on the current financial position 
of the trading companies 
 
A financial review and a shareholder governance review had been carried out in the 
hope to produce a sustainable long-term model. The outcomes and proposals from 
the review were due to be received the week commencing 17th April 2023 and 
would undergo an appraisal through the shareholders committee. It was agreed that 
the proposals from the review would be brought to this Committee. It was also 
proposed that there would be a change to the reports, which would see a broader 
report that looked wholly at the company. This report would go through the 
shareholder committee rather than Cabinet.  
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 4



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 17 April  2023     5 
 

 
Chairman      
 
Date       

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   1 

DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET SINCE LAST OSC MEETING AND FORTHCOMING 
CABINET DECISIONS 
MAY TO SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

DECISION CABINET DATE/DECISION 
 

Cabinet Papers – 9 May https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx
?CId=140&MId=2016 

Corporate Plan 9 May 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 
(1)    recommend to Full Council the new Corporate Plan 2023-

26 for adoption at its meeting of 17th May. 
  
(2)    note the proposal to Full Council to receive and consider 

an annual Corporate Plan Achievements Report at Full 
Council in March each year. 

  
(3)    note the proposal to Full Council to receive and consider 

an annual Corporate Plan Performance Report at Full 
Council at the conclusion of Quarter four of the 
performance cycle.   

 
North East Bus Service 
Improvement Plan 

9 May 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
  
(1)     note the decision of the North East Combined Authority 

and the North of Tyne Combined Authority, acting 
together through the North East Joint Transport 
Committee to make an Enhanced Bus Partnership for the 
region; 

  
(2)    delegate authority to the Executive Director for 

Regeneration, in consultation with the Executive Director 
of Finance (Section 151 officer), to accept the funding for 
bus service improvements, once confirmed, from 
Transport North East; and 

  
(3)     authorise the creation of a Northumberland Local Bus 

Board as set out in Appendix 2. 
 

Financial Performance 2022-
23 – Position at the end of 
February 2023 (Provisional 
Outturn 2022-23) 

9 May 2023: 
 
To be considered by the Corporate Services and Economic 
Growth OSC on 26 June 2023. 
 

Outcomes of the 
Consultation on Proposals 
for the Berwick Partnership 

9 May 2023: 
 
To see the full decision, follow this link: 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2016
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2016


 

 
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=7550 
 

Public Report from the Local 
Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO) 

9 May 2023: 
 
To see the full decision, follow this link: 
 
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx
?CId=140&MId=2016 
 

Energising Blyth 
Programme: Culture Hub 
and Market Place Outline 
Business Case 

9 May 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet  
  
(1)    approve the Outline Business Case (OBC) summarised in 

this report for the Culture Hub and Market Place project to 
enable progression to Full Business Case 

  
(2)    approve a total revised budget in the Capital Programme 

of £14,705,732.  There is a current budget in the Capital 
Programme of £12,536,685 this report requests approval 
of £2,169,047 drawn from existing Council funds 
allocated to the Energising Blyth Programme.  The project 
was funded by HM government Future High Streets Fund 
and the Council as set out in Financial Tables 3-5 

  
(3)    note that Jam Jar Cinema Community Interest Company 

(CIC) will be formally appointed as the main operator of 
the Culture Hub and that an operator for the Creative Play 
concession within the facility will be appointed in due 
course subject to Cabinet approval of the 
recommendations in this report 

  
(4)    delegate authority, in accordance with the Energising 

Blyth Local Assurance Framework, to the Council’s s151 
Officer following consideration by the Energising Blyth 
Programme Board to approve the Full Business Case and 
report any subsequent capital implications to Cabinet (via 
the Capital Strategy Group) for inclusion in the Capital 
Programme 

  
(5)    delegate approvals to the Executive Director for Place 

and Regeneration to enter into any contracts relating to 
the project subject to confirmation of associated funding 
being in place and the appropriate procurement 
processes being followed. 

 
The Future of the Berwick 
Museum and Art Collections 

9 May 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approve the retention of the Berwick 
Museum and art collections as part of The Living Barracks 
initiative, subject to further discussions with relevant partners 

Page 8

https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=7550
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2016
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2016


 

on the issues set out at paragraph 47 of the report. 
The Market Sustainability 
and Improvement Fund 
2023/24 

9 May 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
  
(1)    approve the proposed uses of the Market Sustainability 

and Improvement Fund (MSIF) in 2023/24 set out in this 
report, and the resulting commitments in subsequent 
years, which it is anticipated can be funded through the 
increased MSIF grant in 2024/25 and will be covered in 
later years either by continuation of this grant or by 
consolidation of the funding into the general local 
government financial settlement; 

  
(2)    authorise the Executive Director – Adults, Ageing and 

Well-Being, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Adult Well-being, to make detailed decisions about the 
allocation of this grant, within the broad framework set out 
in this report, taking account of further consultations with 
care providers and any other relevant information which 
becomes available. 

 
Cabinet Papers – 13 June https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx

?CId=140&MId=2247 
Ashington Regeneration 
Programme Establishment – 
Strategic Sites Acquisition 
 
To update Cabinet regarding 
the establishment, 
development and delivery of 
the £30m Ashington 
Regeneration Programme, 
which will have a catalytic 
impact on the town’s economy 
and drive forward the 
implementation of the 
Ashington Town Investment 
Plan. 
 
W. Ploszaj/J. Rose - 07500 
097568/ K. Donaldson -07966 
324034 
 

13 June 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(a)    Cabinet endorse the Ashington Investment Plan as the 

overarching strategy that will provide the context, vision 
and aspirations for delivery of the phased Ashington 
Regeneration Programme; and 

(b)     Cabinet agree the establishment of the Ashington 
Regeneration Programme with two initial phases 
associated with the Ashington High Street Innovation 
Programme (HSIP) and Town Centre Renewal of 
Strategic Sites Programme; 

 
 

Enhanced Pothole Repair 
Pilot 
 
Improving the condition of the 
highway network is a key 
corporate priority for the 
Council. This report outlines 
the current arrangements 

13 June 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(a)    Cabinet approve the commencement of a 3-month ‘invest 

to save’ trial of first time patch repair of a proportion of 
actionable carriageway pothole defects in the North and 
Tynedale Local Area Committee areas of the County; 

Page 9

https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2247
https://northumberland.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2247


 

associated with fixing 
individual potholes and sets 
out the basis for a 3-month 
pilot scheme to trial the use of 
a different maintenance 
approach using a ‘first-time’ 
patch repair in two areas of 
the county for a proportion of 
actionable carriageway 
pothole defects, in order to 
quantify the costs and benefits 
associated with this alternative 
approach to one of the main 
revenue funded highway 
maintenance activities 
undertaken by the Council. 
 
J. Riddle/P. Jones - 0771 771 
4523 
 

(b)    Cabinet approve the allocation of £492,600 in revenue 
funds from the severe weather reserve to fund the pilot 
scheme; 

(c)    Cabinet approve the associated financial profiles as set 
out in Appendix 1 whilst:  
 endorsing the bid submitted to extend the HSIP 
Programme with a funding ask of £576,898 and 
acceptance of this additional funding into the Medium 
Term Financial Plan, if successful  
 approving an initial allocation of £1,000,000 in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan to be fully funded by the 
Government to develop plans for Wansbeck Square 
Strategic Site 
 approving an initial grant allocation of £600,000 in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan to be fully funded by the 
Government to develop plans for Portland Park Strategic 
Site  authorising the Executive Director for Place and 
Regeneration to enter into contracts up to the value of 
£1.6m for the development of the strategic sites and 
delivery of public realm capital works, subject to 
confirmation of associated funding being in place and the 
appropriate procurement processes being followed;  

(d)    authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Place 
and Regeneration, in consultation with the s151 Officer, 
to purchase the Woodhorn Road site, at a value up to a 
maximum of £210,000 from funding already allocated in 
the Medium Term Financial Plan;  
(e) Cabinet approve the acquisition of the Wansbeck 
Square site, and delegate authority to the Executive 
Director for Place and Regeneration, in consultation with 
the S151 Officer, to acquire the Wansbeck Square site at 
a value up to a maximum of £1,365,000 with funding from 
the Strategic Regeneration Projects budget within the 
Capital Programme; and  

(f)     Cabinet agree the associated programme management 
and assurance arrangements to support the programme’s 
delivery as set out in the report. 

Potential Loan to 
Northumberland Community 
Bank 
 
The Report requests members 
to approve the potential loan 
facility to Northumberland 
Community Bank of up to 
£50,000 towards its capital 
reserve to maintain its 
Capital:Asset ratio in line with 
FCA Regulations. 
 
R. Wearmouth/J. Willis - 
01670 623424 

13 June 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approve a loan facility of £50,000 to 
Northumberland Community Bank subject to the following: 

 NCB agreeing to the proposed terms and conditions; 
 NCC’s Legal Team completing a legal agreement with 
NCB in advance of any loan drawdown by NCB, 
containing the terms and conditions set out within this 
report; and 
 Subsidy Control implications being investigated and 
satisfied. 

Page 10



 

 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
(UKSPF) Update and 
Northumberland Delivery 
 
To provide an update on the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
(UKSPF) programme and the 
UKSPF funded projects 
secured by Northumberland 
County Council to support 
levelling-up activity across the 
County. 
 
W. Ploszaj/S. McMillan – 
07814298052 
 

13 June 2023: 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
(a)    Cabinet endorse the progress and content of the UKSPF 

Investment `and Delivery Plans for the North of Tyne 
Area; 

(b)    Cabinet welcome and endorse the Northumberland 
County Council-led UKSPF funded projects, described in 
this report and summarised in table 1, which secures 
over £7.085m to deliver a range of levelling-up activities 
and support for Northumberland’s businesses and 
residents over 2022 – 2025; and 

(c)     Cabinet endorse the Inclusive Economy Community 
Partnership project, which, working with the Voluntary 
and Community Sector (VCS), will build capacity and 
deliver activities in support of the inclusive economy, 
focused in our most deprived communities and, if 
successful, accept £0.4m capital and1.15m revenue 
funding into the Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

  
 
 

Page 11



 

FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS 
 
Asset Management Framework 
The report presents for information and approval the new Asset 
Management Framework which includes a new Asset Management 
Policy and Asset Management Strategy for 2023/2026. 
 
R. Wearmouth/S. Neilson - 01670 620292 
 

11 July 2023 

District Heating Update and Partnership Procurement 
The report provides an update on the progress made regarding the 
District Heating studies completed across eight towns in the county, 
namely: Alnwick, Ashington, Berwick, Blyth, Cramlington, Hexham, 
Morpeth and Prudhoe. It also summarises the feedback received on 
proposed options for delivery models for the schemes, identifies the 
preferred model for delivery and seeks approval from Cabinet to proceed 
with the next phase of activity, which involves a series of procurement 
exercises to firstly secure specialist legal and commercial advisors and 
then to progress the procurement of a Heat Provider. 
 
Leader/P. Jones -0771 771 4523  
  

11 July 2023 

Energising Blyth: Levelling Up Deep Dive 
This report seeks Cabinet’s formal agreement to accept the Levelling Up 
Deep Dive funding award from UK Government to support the delivery of 
new projects as part of the Energising Blyth programme. 
 
W. Ploszaj/R. Strettle – 07770642773 
 

11 July 2023 

Environmental Enforcement Fixed Penalty Notice & Penalty Notice 
Policy 2023 
To consider, agree and adopt the reviewed and updated FPN policy 
including new offences and new fine levels for existing offences.  
 
G. Stewart/J. Robertson 07833237082 
 

11 July 2023 

Financial Performance 2022-23 – Final Outturn (subject to audit) 
The report will provide Cabinet with the revenue and capital final outturn 
position against budget for 2022-23 (subject to audit). 
 
R. Wearmouth/ K. Harvey 01670 624783 
 

11 July 2023 

Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service Contract 
To seek permission from Cabinet to award the contract of Integrated 
Drug and Alcohol Service in Northumberland. This service will be 
commissioned using the public health ring fenced grant. The grant 
conditions state that Local Authorities must provide drug and alcohol 
services for its population. The contract is for four years 
 
W. Pattison/J. Liddell - 07929 775559 
 
 

11 July 2023 

Page 12



 

Northumberland Stewardship and Rural Growth Investment 
Programme – Nature Recovery Response 
As well as being a statutory requirement, the development of an 
ambitious North of Tyne Local Nature Recovery Strategy will support 
important elements of the Stewardship and Rural Growth Investment 
Plan, specifically Strategic Investment 
Programme 1: Decarbonisation, Biodiversity and Resilience, and will also 
support the Local Investment in Natural Capital Programme that 
Northumberland and four other local authorities are piloting for DEFRA. 
This report will propose governance arrangements for the North of Tyne 
Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS). It will also propose that 
Northumberland County Council joins other local authorities in declaring 
an ecological emergency to coincide with the commencement of work on 
the LNRS. This will create a framework for the Council’s work on nature 
recovery and will also be a public statement of intent, acknowledging the 
widespread and growing concern about the state of nature in the UK. 
 
C. Horncastle/D. Feige - 0777 429 5253 
 

11 July 2023 

  
Outcomes of Statutory Consultation regarding School 
Reorganisation in the Berwick Partnership 
This report sets out an analysis of the representations and responses 
received from interested parties and stakeholders during the four-week 
statutory consultation, which commenced on 11 May and closed on 8 
June 2023, in relation to proposals for schools in the Berwick Partnership. 
Cabinet is asked to make a final decision on whether or not to approve 
the proposals, including school closures, set out in the statutory proposal. 
At the same time, Cabinet is requested to make a final decision on 
whether or not to approve the non-statutory proposals relating to the 
voluntary schools within the Berwick Partnership as set out in the Report 
of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, 
Berwick Partnership Organisation – 9th May 2023. In making its final 
decision, Cabinet are advised to consider the decision of the DfE’s 
Regional Director of Education for the North East with respect to 
proposed changes to St Cuthbert’s Catholic First School and Berwick 
Academy. 
 
G. Renner Thompson/S. Aviston - (01670) 622281 
 

20 July 2023 
FACS 18 July 2023 

  
Leisure Programme Update 
To update Cabinet with progress on the Leisure programme 
 
J. Watson/M. Donnelly 07517 553463 
 

12 December 2023 

  
Leisure Programme Update 
To update Cabinet with progress on the Leisure programme 
 
J. Watson/M. Donnelly 07517 553463 

9 April 2024 

 

Page 13



 

 

Page 14



Corporate Services & Economic Growth, 26th June 
2023

Place & Regeneration 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Place & Regeneration directorate 
Executive Director of 
Place & Regeneration
Simon Neilson

Director of 
Economic 
Development & 
Growth
Janice Rose

Director of 
Environment & 
Transport
Paul Jones 

Director of  Housing 
& Planning (Chief 
Planning Officer)
Rob Murfin

Head of Economic 
Growth & Inward 
Investment
Sarah McMillan

Head of Tourism 
(P/T)
Maureen McAllister

Head of Highways 
& Transport
David Laux

Head of  
Neighbourhood 
Services
Greg Gavin

Head of Planning
Liz Sinnamon

Head of Housing 
Services
Susan Ogle

P
age 16



Responsibilities relating to Corporate Services & Economic Growth 

● Cabinet roles of Cllrs Ploszaj (Supporting Business & 
Opportunities)

● The Leader, in particular our involvement in devolution, 
Borderlands and the Joint Transport Committee

● Most other areas of the directorate covered by Communities & 
Place scrutiny committee through the portfolios of Cllrs Riddle 
and Horncastle

P
age 17



Areas of potential focus

● Devolution and the new North East Mayoral 
Combined Authority

● Major transport schemes development and delivery 
(i.e. Northumberland Line, Blyth Relief Road)

● Regeneration schemes update
● Borderlands update

P
age 18



 

 Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 1 

CABINET 
9 May 2023 

Financial Performance 2022-23 – Position at the end of February 
2023 (Provisional Outturn 2022-23) 
Report of Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services  

Executive Director: Jan Willis, Executive Director of Resources & Transformation 

 
1. Purpose of report 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to ensure that the Cabinet is informed of the 

provisional outturn position for the Council against the Budget for 2022-23. 
Due to the timing of the statutory accounts deadline the forecast provisional 
outturn is based on the position at the end of February. 

2. Recommendations 
2.1 Members are requested to approve: 

• the new grants and amendments to existing grants at Appendix A and 
the required changes to the budgets. 

• the following which are assumed in the forecast position: 

o Create a reserve to carry forward unspent 2022-23 Homes for 
Ukraine funding as per the conditions. The unspent grant is 
estimated at £5.026 million. It is proposed that the transfer of the 
final value and utilisation of this reserve is delegated to the 
Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in consultation with 
the Section 151 Officer. 

o Create a reserve of £2.930 million for the replacement of defective 
street lanterns. It is proposed that the utilisation of this reserve is 
delegated to the Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in 
consultation with the Section 151 Officer. 

o Create a reserve of £0.250 million for Parks and Green Spaces to 
supplement the Parks Enhancement Capital Programme. Growth 
was approved by the Council in the 2022-23 budget but was not 
utilised and schemes are now to be delivered in 2023-24. It is 
proposed that the utilisation of this reserve is delegated to the 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 2 

Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in consultation with 
the Section 151 Officer. 

o Create a reserve for £1.127 million for Highways Commuted 
Maintenance Funds received from developers for future use on the 
maintenance of the highway following adoption by the Council. It is 
proposed that the utilisation of this reserve is delegated to the 
Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in consultation with 
the Section 151 Officer. 

• the transfer of the balance of funds from the Economy and Regeneration 
Investment Reserve to the Regeneration Additional Capacity Reserve to 
be used to offset the fluctuations in external income received by the 
service over the medium term to provide a degree of stability for the core 
capacity of the service. It is proposed that the utilisation of this reserve is 
delegated to the Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in 
consultation with the Section 151 Officer. 

• the following use of the underspend: 
o Add £1.000 to the Regeneration Development Reserve to enable 

the continued support of the key economic work of the Council 
and appropriate external partners, to maximise the benefits of 
current and future investment opportunities. 

o Add £0.100 million to the Regeneration Additional Capacity 
Reserve to offset the fluctuations of external funding income over 
the medium term, thereby providing a degree of stability for the 
core capacity of the Service. 

o Add £1.017 million to the Exceptional Inflation Reserve to offset 
potential inflationary pressures in 2023-24. 

• that any balance remaining upon finalisation of the Statement of 
Accounts is to be transferred to the Council’s General Fund (GF).   

2.2 Members are requested to note: 

• the estimated net re-profiling to the Capital Programme of £14.284 
million from 2022-23 to 2023-24 to reflect estimated expenditure levels in 
the current financial year. 

• the services projected overspend of £3.091 million and the assumptions 
outlined in this report. 

• the net forecast underspend of £2.117 million following the utilisation of 
the Exceptional Inflation Reserve. 

• the forecast net nil impact on the General Fund following the proposed 
use of the underspend. 

• that this forecast provisional outturn is based on the figures as at the end 
of February and is subject to change. 

Page 20



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 3 

• the delivery of the approved savings at Appendix B. 

• the use of the contingency shown at Appendix Q. 

• the use of reserves shown at Appendix R. 

• the virements requested by services shown at Appendix S. 

3. Link to Corporate Plan  
3.1 The Council’s budget is aligned to the priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan 

2021-24 “A Council that Works for Everyone”. The budget includes significant 
investment in each of the priorities and the overarching themes of “supporting 
economic recovery and growth” and “tackling inequalities”.   

3.2 Thriving: significant investment to promote economic growth in the county, 
including supporting local businesses in post Covid-19 recovery, capital 
investment to reopen the Northumberland Line and the Borderlands 
programme of investment in rural growth and regeneration. 

3.3 Living, Learning: the largest proportion of the revenue budget is dedicated to 
this priority which includes caring for residents, supporting the most vulnerable 
in society, encouraging active citizens and ensuring the best education 
standards for children and young people. 

3.4 Enjoying, Connecting: substantial investment is committed to protect and 
enhance the environment, while prioritising climate change and delivering high 
quality services in all communities. This includes improving parks and open 
spaces and keeping the county’s streets and roads clean, tidy and safe. 

3.5 How: the Council is committed to listen to and communicate with residents, 
businesses and partners and ensure value for money in its services. 
Decisions regarding the budget were taken following engagement with 
residents, partners and Local Area Councils, to ensure delivery on the 
services, facilities and improvements they value most. 

  

Page 21



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 4 

4. Key issues 
4.1 Overall Position 
4.1.1 The report provides information and analysis on the Council’s financial 

performance and use of resources in 2022-23. The Council set its budget for 
2022-23 on 23 February 2022 and this report focuses on the financial 
performance to the end of February 2023 and the projected provisional 
outturn position at that point in time. 

4.2 Inflationary Pressures 
4.2.1 During the preparation of the 2022-23 budget and the Medium Term Financial 

Plan (MTFP) a significant sum of money was earmarked to deal with “routine 
inflation” and what the Council referred to as “hyper-inflation". It was 
anticipated that the hyper-inflation would continue for two years and money 
has been set aside in reserves to fund these additional costs. 

4.2.3 All of the inflationary costs have now been included in the forecast position for 
services. Taking account of the exceptional inflation reserve the forecast 
position for the Council for the current year is as follows: 

 £m  
Forecast overspend as per services 3.091 
Use of Exceptional Inflation Reserve (5.208) 
Net forecast underspend (2.117) 
Proposed use of underspend:  
Add £1.000 to the Regeneration Development Reserve to enable the continued 
support of the key economic work of the Council and appropriate external 
partners, to maximise the benefits of current and future investment opportunities 

1.000 

Add £0.100 million to the Regeneration Additional Capacity Reserve to offset the 
fluctuations of external funding income over the medium term, thereby providing 
a degree of stability for the core capacity of the Service 

0.100 

Add £1.017 million to the Exceptional Inflation Reserve to offset potential 
inflationary pressures in 2023-24 1.017 

Net forecast impact on General Fund 0.000 
 

4.2.4 The position at the end of June, after exceptional inflationary pressures, was a 
gross forecast overspend of £17.135 million and a net forecast overspend, 
after utilisation of the exceptional inflation reserve, of £11.927 million. In light 
of this forecast, the Council took urgent action in order to contain the 
overspend and implemented the measures outlined below: 

• The normal budget approval process was suspended and all expenditure 
over £0.010 million was authorised by Executive Directors. 

• The Council invited applications from staff for voluntary redundancy. 

Page 22



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 5 

• There was a freeze on in-year contingency requests and the balance on 
the contingency was utilised to offset the inflationary increases and 
potential overspend. 

• A Vacancy Review Panel was established where all requests to recruit to 
posts were considered. 

• The Executive Team considered increasing fees and charges in year, 
however, no in year increases were deemed necessary. 

• The Executive Team instructed all managers to be proactive and ensure 
“good housekeeping”; e.g. ensure that all of their suppliers were on the 
supplier incentive scheme, review contracts and request better value 
from their suppliers. 

• The Capital Programme was reviewed, particularly in relation to contract 
price inflation. Following this, the cost of capital and debt charges 
(borrowing) were examined to establish the potential for an in-year 
revenue budget underspend. 

  

Page 23



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 6 

The key movements from the June forecast position previously reported to 
Cabinet are shown in the table below: 

June forecast position (after inflationary pressures and use of 
exceptional inflation reserve) 11.927 

Treasury management forecast position following review of the Capital 
Programme (1.809) 

Change in net cost of pay award (largely due to DSG funding of school 
support staff) (3.068) 

Waste PFI underspend due to lower waste volumes and higher commodity 
prices from the sale of recyclable materials (2.050) 

Other changes, including the effect of deferring employment to vacant posts 
where possible (0.679) 

September forecast position (after inflationary pressures and use of 
exceptional inflation reserve) 4.321 

Reduction in energy forecast (0.519) 

Reduction in pay award forecast (0.754) 

Utilisation of Family Hubs grant funding (0.359) 

Reduction in forecast support for Active Northumberland (0.278) 

Reduced forecast cost of Adult In-house services (0.673) 

Other changes (0.204) 

December forecast position (after inflationary pressures and use of 
exceptional inflation reserve) 1.534 

Reduction in forecast support for Active Northumberland (0.574) 

General contingency underspend (3.225) 

Business rates underspend (net of reserve transfers) (0.831) 

Increase in Adult Social Care doubtful debt provision 1.514 

Other changes (0.535) 

Provisional outturn position (after inflationary pressures and use of 
exceptional inflation reserve) (2.117) 

4.3 To date the Council has assisted residents with the cost-of-living crisis as 
follows: 

a. The Council at its meeting on 23 February 2022 agreed to: 

• match the Discretionary Housing Payment allocation of £0.385 million 
provided by the Department for Work and Pensions. 

• an additional one-off in-year credit equivalent to the weekly rent amount 
for residents occupying HRA residences. 

Page 24



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 7 

b. Council tax energy rebates totalling £19.025 million (£150 each) were paid to 
126,836 households. All eligible households were paid by 30 November 2022 
either directly into their bank account, by redeeming a Post Office Voucher, or, 
as a last resort, by a credit to their council tax account.  

In addition, the Council implemented its own Energy Rebate Discretionary 
scheme utilising specific funding provided by the Government to provide 
support to other energy bill payers not eligible under the terms of the core 
energy rebate scheme, and, to provide carefully targeted “top-up” payments to 
the most vulnerable households. 

The Council’s Discretionary scheme provided support for the following cohort 
of households: 

• Households in Council Tax Bands A to D and in receipt of Council Tax 
Support received a £20 top up payment. This was in addition to the £150 
Council Tax rebate announced by the Government, giving them a total of 
£170.  

• Households in Council Tax Bands E to H in receipt of Council Tax 
Support received a £170 payment.  This was to match the total payment 
received by Council Tax Support claimants in Bands A to D (above).   

• Households that are liable for council tax as a main residence and are 
not connected to the national domestic electricity grid; or, receive a 
supply from the national domestic electricity grid (as confirmed with the 
energy distribution network, including Northern Powergrid and Scottish 
Power), received a £400 payment. 

• Households that were in receipt of a Class U council tax exemption (on 
the grounds of severe mental impairment) also received a payment of 
£150. 

The Council’s Discretionary Scheme also included provision to pay occupants 
of registered Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO) properties in 
Northumberland a payment of £150 but received no applications for this 
payment despite publicity and direct contact with landlords.  

In total, 25,482 households received a payment from the Discretionary 
scheme with 22,684 receiving the payment into their bank account and 2,798, 
as a last resort, by way of a credit to their council tax account.  

c. At its meeting on 23 February 2022 Council agreed to update the Council Tax 
Discount policy for 2022-23 to include a hardship award of up to £200 for 
working age council tax support claimants. To date 19,435 awards totalling 
£2.416 million have been made.    

d. On 30 September 2021 the Government announced that a new Household 
Support Fund grant (HSF) would be made available to councils. The new 
grant covered the period 6 October 2021 to 31 March 2022. The Council’s 
allocation was £2.480 million; £0.097 million (4% of grant allocation) covered 

Page 25



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 8 

the cost of scheme administration, and the total amount provided directly to 
vulnerable households was £2.383 million (96% of grant allocation) including: 

• £1.711 million was allocated to households with a child (approximately 
72%) 

• £0.672 million was allocated to households without children 
(approximately 28%) 

• The average payment equated to £49.96 
• The average payment to a household with a child was £46.00 - 

households will have received multiple payments through non-term time 
support  

• The average payment to other households (without a child) was £63.99 
• Food payments totalled £1.341 million and equated to approximately 

56% of the spend  
• Fuel payments totalled £0.882 million and equated to approximately 37% 

of the spend  
• 93% of the grant has been spent on food, fuel and water, with 7% 

spread linked to wider essentials 

On 31 March 2022 the Government announced that pensioners and families 
were set to benefit from the £500.000 million extension to the Household 
Support Fund. This grant covered the period 1 April 2022 to 30 September 
2022. The Council’s funding allocation was £2.480 million. 

• Expenditure for the period 1 April 2022 to 30 September 2022 was 
£2.480 million, (£2.460 million to vulnerable households and £0.020 
million for administration), 35,986 awards, allocated as follows: 
o By area 

• Households with children - £1.159 million (47% of expenditure to 
vulnerable adults); 19,558 awards, 

• Households with pensioners - £1.146 million (47% of 
expenditure to vulnerable adults); 13,447 awards, and  

• Household other - £0.155 million (6% of expenditure to 
vulnerable adults); 2,981 awards. 

o By category 
• Food payments totalled £1.320 million; 19,524 awards, 
• Fuel, energy, water and related payments totalled £1.112 

million; 15,950 awards, and 
• Other wider essential payments totalled £0.028 million; 512 

awards. 

On 26 May 2022, the Chancellor announced, as part of a number of 
measures to provide help with global inflationary challenges and the 
significantly rising cost of living, that the Household Support Fund (HSF) 
would be extended from 1 October 2022 to 31 March 2023. The fund was 

Page 26



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 9 

made available to Northumberland County Council to support those most in 
need. The Council’s funding allocation for the period was £2.480 million.  

There have been a number of changes to the guidance compared with 
previous schemes of the Household Support Fund. The first, is that there will 
be no ringfence of any proportion of funding for any particular cohort of 
people. Also amongst the changes is a requirement for all authorities to 
operate at least part of their scheme on an application basis i.e residents 
should have the opportunity to come forward to ask for support. This has 
been made available through various routes including universal email 
access.  

There is also an expectation that particular consideration is given to those 
groups who may not have benefitted from any of the recent cost of living 
support. 

Summary of performance for the period 1 October 2022 to 31 December 
2022:  
• £1.101 million expenditure between 1 October 2022 and 31 December 

2022, 
• £1.868 million committed between 1 October 2022 and 31 March 2023,  
• £0.612 million remains uncommitted between 1 October 2022 and 31 

March 2023. 

Breakdown of performance by Household Composition for the period 1 
October 2022 to 31 December 2022 

• Household Children (0-19yrs) = £0.913 million expenditure / 18,328 
awards,  

• Household Disability = £0.122 million expenditure / 2,444 awards, 
• Household Pensioners = £0.024 million expenditure / 285 awards,  
• Household Other = £0.042 million expenditure / 642 awards.  

Breakdown of performance by Category of Support for the period 1 October 
2022 to 31 December 2022: 

• Fuel/Energy   = £0.388 million expenditure / 7360 awards,  
• Food = £0.694 million expenditure / 149 awards, 
• Essentials linked to Fuel/Food = £0.010 million expenditure / 285 

awards,  
• Other = £0.009 million expenditure / 178 awards. 

Performance for the period 1 October 2022 to 31 March 2023 will be 
calculated after the financial year end. 

On 17 November 2022 in the Autumn Statement the Chancellor announced, 
as part of a number of measures to provide help with global inflationary 
challenges and the significantly rising cost of living, that the Household 

Page 27



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 10 

Support Fund would be extended from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 with a 
further £842.000 million of funding. Northumberland County Council will 
receive indicative funding totalling £4.961 million to cover the period.    

The objective of the fund continues to be to provide crisis support to 
vulnerable households most in need of support, and to help with significantly 
rising living costs. 

Northumberland County Council will provide the Department for Work and 
Pensions with a summary of how the authority plans to spend the funding 
during the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 through an initial 
management information return outlining proposed grant spend and the 
volume of awards by 17 May 2023. 

5. Projected Revenue Outturn 2022-23 

5.1 The Council’s projected revenue outturn position, within each service area is 
shown in summary at Section 6 of the report (figures in brackets denote an 
underspend); and in detail within Appendices C - O of the report. 

5.2 The Council’s overall annual revenue expenditure is managed across a 
number of areas: 

a. The General Fund with a net budget of £382.624 million, providing 
revenue funding for the majority of the Council’s services. 

b. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £150.250 million in 2022-23, 
which is ring-fenced for schools funding, overseen by the Schools’ 
Forum, and managed within the Children’s Services Directorate. 

c. Public Health, a ring-fenced grant of £17.366 million in 2022-23, must be 
spent to support the delivery of the Public Health Outcomes Framework 
and is managed within Public Health and Community Services. 

d. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) with anticipated gross 
expenditure budget of £38.914 million in 2022-23, is ring-fenced, and 
reported separately from the General Fund, and is managed within the 
Regeneration, Commercial and Economy Directorate.  

Page 28



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 11 

6. General Fund 
6.1 The following table provides a summary of how each Directorate is performing 

against the General Fund revenue budget for the 2022-23 financial year. 

 
Service  Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn Variance 

 £m £m £m 
Adult Social Care & Commissioning 113.598 115.111 1.513 
Chief Executive 29.929 30.003 0.074 
Children’s Services 69.471 71.246 1.775 
Communities & Business Development 15.829 15.971 0.142 
Finance 28.016 26.485 (1.531) 

Planning & Local Services 81.394 81.899 0.505 

Public Health & Community Services 4.788 4.662 (0.126) 
Regeneration 5.127 4.201 (0.926) 
Total Services 348.152 349.578 1.426 

Corporate Expenditure and Income 34.472 34.468 (0.004) 
Total Net Expenditure 382.624 384.046 1.422 
    

Budget funded by:    

Council Tax (219.677) (219.677) 0.000 
Retained Business Rates  (74.254) (78.590) (4.336) 
Revenue Support Grant (10.837) (10.837) 0.000 
Other Corporate Grants (38.450) (38.450) 0.000 
Earmarked Reserves (14.365) (8.360) 6.005 

General Reserve (25.041) (25.041) 0.000 
Total Funding of Services (382.624) (380.955) 1.669 
    

Net Total 0.000 3.091 3.091 
  

Page 29



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 12 

6.2 The following graph provides a trend analysis of the forecast outturn, by 
directorate over the year to date:  

 

 

6.3 The Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) was made available to 
councils during the Covid-19 pandemic to support activities to mitigate and 
manage local outbreaks of Covid-19. The Department of Health and Social 
Care confirmed that the Council’s unspent funding of £2.130 million could be 
carried forward to financial year 2022-23 to support the local response to 
living with Covid-19. The funding has been committed to activities in the 
following services: 

Service Funding 

 £m 

Adult Social Care & Commissioning 0.390 

Chief Executive 0.057 

Children’s Services 0.742 

Communities & Business Development 0.610 

Planning & Local Services 0.165 

Public Health & Community Services 0.166 

Total COMF Allocated 2.130 

The Department of Health and Social Care has confirmed that unspent funds 
from COMF can be carried forward to financial year 2023-24. It is anticipated 
that the Council will carry forward funds of £0.103 million, which is committed 
to continuing activities to protect vulnerable residents, harnessing capacity 
within local sectors, and community-based support for those 
disproportionately impacted. 

 

Page 30



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 13 

7. Other General Fund Items 
7.1 Appendix A is a schedule of all new grants and amendments to existing grants 

(capital and revenue) which the Council has been awarded during January to 
February 2023 and expected to be awarded during March 2023. 

7.2 The Council at its meeting in February 2022 agreed to implement a range of 
savings and efficiencies totalling £9.704 million in 2022-23. A recent review of 
the delivery of those savings has been conducted and the results are 
illustrated at Appendix B. 

7.3 Appendix Q is a schedule of all items which have been released from 
contingency during January to February and those expected to be released in 
March 2023. 

7.4 Appendix R is a schedule of the movement in the Council’s Reserves. 

7.5 Appendix S is a schedule of virements during January to March 2023. 

 
  

Page 31



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 14 

8. Ring-fenced Accounts - Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG) 

2022-23 Budget 

 
Gross 

Expenditure 
Gross 

Income 
Net Revenue 

Budget 
Net  

Outturn 
 

Variance 
 

£m £m £m £m £m 
Dedicated Schools’ Grant 151.313 (151.313) 0.000 (1.281) (1.281) 

8.1 The DSG budget includes a revised grant allocation of £150.250 in 2022-23, 
plus the use of £1.063 million carried forward from 2021-22. The overall DSG 

surplus from 2021-22 was £4.032 million, however only £1.063 million has 
been confirmed for use in 2022-23. The remaining balance on the reserve has 

been authorised by Schools’ Forum to be set aside for pressures arising in 
2023-24. The DSG is forecast to underspend by £1.281 million and the details 

explaining the factors leading to this variance are contained within Appendix 
G. 

9. Ring-fenced Accounts - Public Health Grant 

2022-23 Budget 
Gross 

Expenditure 

 
Gross 

Income 
Net Revenue 

Budget 
Net 

Outturn Variance 
 

£m £m £m £m £m 
Public Health Grant 17.366 (17.366) 0.000 0.000 0.000 

9.1 Further details on the Public Health budget are contained within Appendix L. 

10. Ring-fenced Accounts - Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

2022-23 Budget 
Gross 

Expenditure 
Gross 

Income 
Net Revenue 

Budget 
Net 

Outturn Variance 
 

£m £m £m £m £m 
Housing Revenue Account 38.914 (38.928) (0.014) 0.782 0.796 

10.1 The HRA is forecast to overspend by £0.796 million and the details explaining 
the factors leading to this variance are contained within Appendix M. 

  

Page 32



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 15 

11. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

11.1 The Capital Programme for 2022-23 totalling £307.356 million was agreed by 
full Council on 23 February 2022. 

11.2 The Capital Programme has changed during the year as the phasing of 
schemes was reviewed at the end of the previous financial year with £52.001 
million re-profiled from 2021-22 to 2022-23 and a mid-year review resulting in 
a net in-year reprofiling of £185.951 million from 2022-23 to 2023-24. In 
addition, further approvals totalling £15.434 million have been agreed by 
Cabinet for additional schemes. 

 

Page 33



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 16 

11.3 The following table sets out the provisional outturn position: 

Directorate 
Original 
Budget 

Approved 
Adjustment 

Revised 
Budget 

Expenditure 
to date 

Forecast 
Expenditure 

Net 
Variance 

Over / 
(Under) 

spend Reprofiling 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Adult Social Care & 
Commissioning 8.191 (4.083) 4.108 1.674 2.041 (2.067) (1.814) (0.253) 

Chief Executive 1.999 (0.462) 1.537 0.889 1.534 (0.003) (0.003) - 

Children’s Services 24.540 (3.490) 21.050 11.868 16.003 (5.047) (0.676) (4.371) 

Communities & 
Business 
Development 

15.579 (2.870) 12.709 9.628 12.210 (0.499) 0.101 (0.600) 

Finance 35.453 (16.629) 18.824 8.513 17.831 (0.993) (0.086) (0.907) 

Planning & Local 
Services 47.955 1.145 49.100 38.983 48.028 (1.072) (0.035) (1.037) 

Public Health & 
Community Services 28.441 (15.223) 13.218 9.071 10.010 (3.208) (1.151) (2.057) 

Regeneration 145.198 (76.904) 68.294 39.647 54.571 (13.723) (8.664) (5.059) 

Total Programme 307.356 (118.516) 188.840 120.273 162.228 (26.612) (12.328) (14.284) 

Financed by:         

Capital Receipts 4.716 - 4.716      

External Grants 150.488 (57.512) 92.976      

GF Borrowing 126.982 (44.933) 82.049      

GF Revenue 
Contributions 
(RCCO) 

3.437 (1.764) 1.673      

HRA Contributions 
(MRR & RCCO) 21.733 (14.307) 7.426      

Total Financing 307.356 (118.516) 188.840      

11.4 Year-to-date capital expenditure is £120.273 million with forecast expenditure 
of £162.228 million. The major areas of forecast capital investment during the 
year are as follows: 

i. £74.135 million invested in transport schemes including infrastructure, 
traffic management, integrated transport schemes and the 
reintroduction of the Northumberland Line. 

Page 34



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 17 

ii. £16.003 million invested in school buildings, including the relocation of 
Atkinson House. 

iii. £4.081 million invested in fleet replacement. 

iv. £13.277 million invested in leisure facilities including the construction of 
new leisure centres in Berwick and Morpeth. 

v. £9.826 million invested in the Council’s housing stock. 

11.5 There is a net forecast underspend of £26.612 million across the 2022-23 
Capital Programme comprising of £14.284 million net reprofiling from 2022-23 
to 2023-24 and £12.328 million underspend. A summary of the significant 
variances can be found at Appendix P with an explanation of those greater 
than £0.250 million. 

11.6 It is recommended that Cabinet notes estimated net reprofiling of £14.284 
million from 2022-23 to 2023-24. 

 

  

Page 35



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 18 

12. Capital Receipts 

12.1 The level of Capital Receipts available to support the 2022-23 Capital 
Programme was estimated to be £4.716 million (£1.870 million General Fund 
and £2.846 million HRA). General Fund capital receipts completed in the year-
to-date amount to £2.480 million and no further completions are expected in 
the year. The overachievement will be utilised to support the Capital 
Programme in 2022-23. The following table demonstrates the current position 
regarding asset disposals: 

General Fund Asset Disposals 
Actual 

£m 

Completed and available for use in year 2.480 

On the market 1.058 

Terms Agreed 1.991 

Contracts exchanged 0.744 

12.2 The closing balance on the Capital Receipts Reserve at 31 March 2022 was 
£4.951 million (£4.768 million HRA). This is available to support the Capital 
Programme in 2022-23. 

  

Page 36



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 19 

13. TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

13.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2022-23 was agreed by full 
Council on 23 February 2022. 

13.2 The following table summarises the Council’s borrowing activity for the period 
January to February 2023: 

 Previous 
Quarter Movement- Feb 23 Current 

Outstanding principal - at quarter end (£m) 740.401 (0.018) 740.383 

Weighted average interest rate - year to date (%)  3.002 0.136 3.138 

Quarter end external borrowing as % of Operational 
Boundary (Borrowing)  70.919 (0.002) 70.917 

13.3 Whilst the Council has an overall cap on borrowing through an Authorised 
Limit, the Operational Boundary is where the Council would expect its 
borrowing to be. At the end of February 2023, the Council’s external 
borrowing represented 70.92% of its Operational Boundary, which was 
approved as part of the Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23. The 
Operational Boundary is only a guide and may be breached or undershot 
without significant concern, with borrowing driven by economic and market 
considerations as well as interest rates. 

13.4 The following table provides an analysis by type of the borrowing activity for 
the period January to February 2023: 

Lender Category 
Repayment 
Type 

Opening 
Balance 

Repaid –  
Jan - Feb 

2023 

New 
Borrowing 

Jan - Feb 
2023 

Closing 
Balance 

  £m £m £m £m 

PWLB EIP 3.502 - - 3.502 

PWLB Annuity 0.558 (0.018) - 0.540 

Salix EIP 0.037 - - 0.037 

PWLB Maturity 445.704 - - 445.704 

Other Local Authorities Maturity 45.000 (35.000) 35.000 45.000 

Other/Market Maturity 245.600 - - 245.600 

Total  740.401 (35.018) 35.000 740.383 
  

Page 37



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 20 

13.5 The following table summarises the Council’s investment activity for the period 
January to February 2023: 

 
Previous 

Quarter 

Movement - 

Jan – Feb 2023 Current 

Outstanding principal - at month end (£m) 134.500 1.500 136.000 

Weighted average interest rate - year to date (%)  3.285 0.556 3.841 

13.6 The following table provides an analysis by type of the investment activity for 
the period January to February 2023: 

Category 
Opening 
Balance 

Repaid –  
Jan – Feb 

2023 

New  
Investment 

Jan – Feb 
2023 

Closing 
Balance 

 £m £m £m £m 

Term Deposit Banks 20.000 (20.000) - - 

Term Deposit Building Societies 15.000 (15.000) - - 

Term Deposit Other Local Authorities 24.500 (24.500) 10.000 10.000 

Money Market Funds 60.000 (92.900) 143.900 111.000 

Debt Management Office (DMO) 5.000 - - 5.000 

Notice Accounts 10.000 - - 10.000 

Total 134.500 (152.400) 153.900 136.000 

13.7 New investments during the period 1 January to 28 February 2023 consisted 
of a £10.000 million fixed term deposit, over one and a half months, with a 
local authority at 3.65%. 

There was a net investment of Money Market Funds of £51.000 million. The 
movement in the Money Market Funds represents daily deposits and 
withdrawals to manage cashflow. 

 

Page 38



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 21 

14. Transformation Fund Reserve 

14.1 The Council at its budget meeting on 23 February 2022 agreed to invest 
£3.000 million per annum for three years in a strategic change programme, 
now known as BEST programme of work. 

14.2 To date a number of commitments have already been made against that fund 
as follows: 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Council Investment 3.000 3.000 3.000 - 9.000 

Commitments to 28 February 2023 1.106 1.629 1.981 1.117 5.833 

Balance Available 1.894 1.371 1.019 (1.117) 3.167 

14.3 A number of projects have already been approved by the Transformation 
Board, including for example, Fix My Street, Living Leader and the Labman 
management system. In addition to this, it will be necessary to recruit to a 
number of fixed term roles in order that the project can progress, and the 
service improvements can be delivered quickly. The roles will be required for 
a maximum of three years and approval has been given for the estimated cost 
of £2.567 million.  

14.4 It will also be necessary to involve a number of staff across the Council in the 
BEST programme of work.  However, their roles within the workstreams will 
require a full-time commitment so it is recommended that the Transformation 
Fund is also used to fund the temporary backfill for those staff involved in the 
work. Approval has been given for the estimated cost of this, which is £0.661 
million over the next three years. 

14.4 It is likely that the profiling of the commitments will extend into 2025-26.  
Members will receive a quarterly update on the Transformation Fund balance, 
actual expenditure and commitments as part of the Financial Performance 
report. 

 

Page 39



 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 22 

Implications 

Policy The report provides information and analysis on the Council’s financial 
performance against budget as set in the Medium-Term Financial Plan 2022-26 
which fully supports the priorities outlined in the Corporate Plan 2021-24 - A 
Council that Works for Everyone. 

Finance and value for 
money 

The report is of a financial nature and the detail is contained within the body of the 
report. 

Legal There are no immediate legal implications arising from the recommendations within 
this report. 

Procurement There are no specific procurement implications within this report. 

Human Resources There are no specific human resources implications within this report. 

Property There are no specific property implications within this report. 

Equalities (Impact 
Assessment attached) 

There are no specific equalities implications within this report. 

Risk Assessment The risks associated with the budget were considered in February 2022 and were 
considered to be acceptable. 

Crime & Disorder There are no specific crime and disorder implications within this report. 

Customer Consideration There are no specific customer consideration implications within this report. 

Carbon reduction There are no specific carbon reduction implications within this report. 

Health & Wellbeing The Council’s budget is founded on the principle of promoting inclusivity. 

Wards All wards. 

Background papers 
Cabinet 8 February 2022 and Council 23 February 2022: Budget 2022-23 and 
Medium-Term Financial Plan 2022-26 

Report sign off 
 Name 
Monitoring Officer/Legal Suki Binjal 
Section S151 Officer Jan Willis 
Relevant Executive Director Jan Willis 
Chief Executive Helen Paterson 
Portfolio Holder(s) Cllr Richard Wearmouth 

Author and Contact Details 
Kris Harvey 
Finance Manager 
Telephone: 01670 624783   Kris.Harvey@northumberland.gov.uk

Page 40



Appendix A 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 23 

Directorate: Adult Social Care & Commissioning 

Grant Awarding Body: Department of Health and Social Care 

Name of Grant: Grant to Streamline Local Authority Adult Social Care Assessments 

Purpose: This is a non-ringfenced grant contribution paid to local authorities 
towards implementing innovative projects developed in response to 
planned reforms. There are no conditions on the grant. 

Value: £148,791 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent 

Profiling: March 2023 

 

Directorate: Children’s Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Department for Education 

Name of Grant: Dedicated Schools Grant 

Purpose: The grant is paid in support of the local authority's school budget. 
The reduction in grant represents the Early Years Block final 
allocation which is based upon the January 2023 census. 

Value: £224,840 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent 

Profiling: March 2023 

  

Page 41



Appendix A 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 24 

Directorate: Children’s Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Department for Education 

Name of Grant: Early Years Experts and Mentor programme 

Purpose: Early Years support delivered by mentors to early years practitioners, 
leaders and the wider setting. 

Value: £12,000  

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent 

Profiling: March 2023 

 

Directorate: Children’s Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Department for Education 

Name of Grant: Early Years Professional Development programme phase 3 

Purpose: Funding to ensure sufficiency and capacity to deliver continuous 
professional development across the Early years workforce as part of 
the early years education recovery plan 

Value: £23,200 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Recurrent until 2024-25, future allocations not confirmed 

Profiling: March 2023 

 

  

Page 42



Appendix A 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 25 

 

Directorate: Children’s Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Ministry of Justice 

Name of Grant: Turnaround programme  

Purpose: Support to build the resilience of vulnerable families and to drive 
system change to ensure local services can identify families in need. 

Value: £62,837 2022-23  
£165,405 2023-24  
£165,314 2024-25 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Recurrent 2022-2025 

Profiling: December 2023 and twice yearly for future years 

 

Directorate: Public Health and Community Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government 

Name of Grant: Shaping Places for Healthier Lives 

Purpose: To fund projects that aim to make changes to local systems that will 
encourage better physical and mental health, and that will be 
sustained beyond the lifetime of the grant programme. 

Value: £100,020 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-recurrent 

Profiling: January 2023 

 

  

Page 43



Appendix A 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 26 

 

Directorate: Public Health and Community Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Newcastle City Council acting as Lead Authority for the One Public 
Estate North East Partnership 

Name of Grant: Resource Capacity Funding  

Purpose: To fund feasibility studies for two HRA sites at Foggins Yard, 
Rothbury and Lyndon Walk, Blyth and funding for a strategic 
business case for the HRA site at Lanercost Park, Cramlington.  

Value: £24,140 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent  

Profiling: March 2023 

 

Directorate: Public Health and Community Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Northumbria Police & Crime Commissioner  
 

Name of Grant: Seasonal Violence Funding 

Purpose: Violence Reduction funding to contribute to Preventing Crime” and 
“Improving Lives  

Value: £20,000 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent  

Profiling: April 2022 – March 2023 

 

  

Page 44



Appendix A 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 27 

 

Directorate: Public Health and Community Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Northumbria Police & Crime Commissioner  

Name of Grant: Supporting victims of ASB across the region 

Purpose: To support victims of ASB across Northumberland 

Value: £5,000 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-Recurrent  

Profiling: December 2022 – March 2023 

 

Directorate: Public Health and Community Services 

Grant Awarding Body: Public Health England 

Name of Grant: Drug & Alcohol Universal Grant 

Purpose: To support improvements in interventions to reduce drug related 
offending and deaths 

Value: £478,710 

Recurrent/Non-recurrent: Non-recurrent 

Profiling: January 2023 

Page 45



Appendix B 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 28 

Performance against the 2022-23 savings targets is shown in the table below. The savings 
have been RAG rated based on the ability to meet the savings target within the year. 

Directorate Red Amber Green Total 
 £m £m £m £m 
Adult Social Care & Commissioning 2.570  0.000  0.691  3.261  
Chief Executive 0.000  0.000  0.183  0.183  
Children’s Services 0.503  0.000  0.979  1.482  
Communities & Business Development 0.115  0.000  0.196  0.311  
Finance 0.020  0.000  1.122  1.142  
Planning & Local Services 0.285  0.000  2.032  2.317  
Public Health & Community Services 0.000  0.000  0.004  0.004  
Regeneration 0.000  0.000  0.004  0.004  
Corporate 0.494  0.000  0.506  1.000  
Total 3.987  0.000  5.717  9.704 

Key  
Red – saving not expected to be delivered in year  
Amber – saving at risk of non-delivery in year 
Green – saving delivered or expected to be delivered in year  

Adult Social Care & Commissioning 

The shortfall in savings relates to the proposed review of individual care packages. The 
Risk and Independence (R & I) Team, who are responsible for delivering the bulk of this 
saving, has been utilised to cover critical staffing shortages in care teams to deliver 
statutory assessments and services. The shortfall will be partially offset by underspends 
across other areas of Adult Services in particular within employee costs as a result of the 
high level of vacant posts. 

Children’s Services 

The bulk of the shortfall in savings relates to a proposal to reduce the level of out of county 
placements by £0.245 million as up to six new beds in NCC residential homes were due 
for completion by the end of 2022-23. There was a delay in the development of the homes 
which means they will not be ready until 2023-24. Revenue funding for the staffing and 
running costs of the new beds of £0.222 million was built into the residential homes budget 
and will not be required during 2022-23 so will largely offset this saving. 

There is a £0.350 million saving proposal in relation to additional income at Kyloe House 
that is not expected to be delivered as originally intended within the year. The saving was 
based upon a significant increase to the bed price to bring it in line with other providers. 
The service has identified issues around retaining and recruiting staff which is impacting 
on their ability to open all the beds in the unit following reduced occupancy during the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Alternative savings are being sought recurrently and the level of 
shortfall is currently £0.258 million. This is offset in year by additional income from other 
local authorities. 

Page 46



Appendix B 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 29 

Communities & Business Development 

£0.045 million unachieved saving is based on Placecube creating a 10% channel shift 
including successful project team implementation and changing customer habits. 
Placecube will be implemented by April 2023 so any impact will not be realised until the 
next financial year when the system is embedded, and customer channel shift is 
evidenced.   

£0.070 million unachieved saving is due to the delivery of the new vehicles for the Library 
Service being delayed. 

Finance 

£0.020 million Oracle database licence reduction saving will not be achieved in 2022-23 
but will now be achieved in 2023-24. 

Planning & Local Services 

£0.110 million under achievement of Planning Performance Agreements. This service was 
introduced in 2021-22 and is very much in its infancy. Uptake of the scheme has been 
slower than anticipated during this market penetration phase. 

£0.175 million under recovery of Pre-Application Fees. The appetite for this service has 
been diminishing so the service is in the process of being refreshed and relaunched. The 
timescale means this savings target will not be achieved in this financial year. 

Corporate 

It is currently forecast that £0.494 million of the £1.000 million target saving attributable to 
the review of the executive and senior management structure will not be achieved in 2022-
23. However, the review of tiers 3 and 4 management level will identify additional savings 
to contribute to the shortfall. Further recurrent savings of £0.253 million have been 
identified from April 2023 which will contribute to this savings target, leaving £0.241 million 
to be identified.  Progress updates will be provided within future reports. 

Page 47



Appendix C 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 30 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Adult Social Care & Commissioning 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Commissioned Services 71.263 79.359 84.199 4.840 

In-house Services 9.905 11.073 9.475 (1.598) 

Care Management 14.304 16.496 15.275 (1.221) 

Support & Other Services 7.138 6.670 6.162 (0.508) 

Total Adult Social Care & Commissioning 102.610 113.598 115.111 1.513 
 

NOTES - Predicted Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast position for Adult Social Care and Commissioning are outlined below: 

a. Commissioned Services is forecast to overspend by £4.840 million. This is predominantly due to the 
high level of savings target allocated to this area. Due to ongoing recruitment difficulties, the Risk 
and Independence (R & I) Team who are responsible for delivering the bulk of this saving are 
currently being utilised to cover critical staffing shortages in care teams to deliver statutory 
assessments and services. Some of the team moved back into their R & I roles in January with a 
view to gradually bringing the team back to full strength by the end of the financial year. 

A review of historic adult social care debt has resulted in an increase in the doubtful debt provision 
of £1.514 million which is included in the forecast position.   

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) created a £500.000 million Adult Social Care 
Discharge Fund to be distributed to Local Authorities and Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) in 2022-23 
to prioritise approaches which free up hospital beds. The Council was allocated £1.268 million and 
the pooled amount from the ICB is £1.332 million. Adult Social Care will be spending on behalf of 
the Council and the ICB and any additional costs will be met from the fund with any projected 
underspend to be repaid to DHSC. It is expected that the full allocation will be utilised. 

b. In-House Services is forecast to underspend by £1.598 million. This is due to the following: 
i. Staffing-related budgets are forecast to underspend by £0.877 million. The impact of the 

national workforce shortage, in particular within the health and social care sector, has 
resulted in an increased level of vacancies across Adult Social Care; 

ii. To ensure continuity of care within Commissioned Services, the Short Term Support 
Service (STSS) is providing care and support to clients where external providers do not 

Page 48



Appendix C 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 31 

have the resources to meet the level of care required. This level of service will be met from 
income to the STSS from the Commissioned Care budget; which in turn is included in the 
pressure in Commissioned Care. It is anticipated the additional income will be £0.515 
million more than budget; 

iii. It is anticipated that the delay in the redesign of the telecare service will result in £0.406 
million of the 2021-22 approved saving not being achieved again this financial year; 

iv. The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) made funding available to providers of 
Adult Social Care in 2021-22 to help with the costs of infection control and workforce 
retention within care settings during the Covid-19 pandemic. The Council prioritised the 
funding in the first instance to external providers to reclaim the additional costs incurred. 
The level of external claims was lower than the DHSC funding and £0.245 million has now 
been redistributed to the Council In-House services to partly offset the cost of Covid-19 
within their services; and, 

v. There are a number of minor variations across a variety of non-staffing and income related 
budgets which result in a forecast underspend of £0.367 million. 

c. Care Management is forecast to underspend by £1.221 million. This is due to the following: 
i. Staffing-related budgets are forecast to underspend by £0.905 million because of vacant 

posts; and, 
ii. There are a number of minor variations across a variety of non-staffing and income related 

budgets which result in a forecast underspend of £0.316 million. 
d. Support & Other Services is forecast to underspend by £0.508 million. This is due to the following: 

i. Staffing-related budgets are forecast to underspend by £0.237 million because of vacant 
posts. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 49



Appendix D 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 32 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Chief Executive 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Chief Executive 0.460 0.476 0.565 0.088 

Fire & Rescue 14.840 17.002 17.786 0.784 

Human Resources 3.520 4.750 4.207 (0.543) 

Legal 3.236 2.778 2.736 (0.042) 

Transformation 0.387 0.122 0.221 0.099 

Policy 0.448 0.507 0.498 (0.009) 

Democratic Services 2.919 2.741 2.593 (0.148) 

Elections 0.889 0.546 0.510 (0.036) 

Public Relations 0.855 1.007 0.887 (0.120) 

Total Chief Executive 27.554 29.929 30.003 0.074 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast position for Chief Executive are outlined below: 

a. Within the Chief Executive area, expenditure of £0.259 million has been incurred in relation to the 
previous Chief Executive’s exit package which was agreed by full Council on 27 July 2022. £0.040 
million of this is being funded from the service’s revenue budget, with the remaining £0.219 million 
funded by the Restructuring Reserve. The Council has received a refund of employers’ pension 
contributions of £0.035 million, which has been transferred to the Restructuring Reserve. 

b. Within the Chief Executive area, expenditure of £0.218 million has been incurred in relation to the 
Director of Transformation voluntary redundancy payments which was agreed by full Council on 21 
September 2022. £0.049 million of this is being funded from the service’s revenue budget, with the 
remaining £0.169 million funded by the Restructuring Reserve.  

c. Within Human Resources, Learning & Organisational Development and Corporate Union there is a 
forecast underspend of £0.407 million as a result of vacant posts; 

d. Fire and Rescue is forecast to overspend by £0.527 million due to: 
ii. A forecast overspend against overtime of £0.292 million which is as a result of a significant 

increase in operational incidents over spring/summer 2022 compounded by staffing 
shortages caused by sickness (both long and short term), a shortage of skills (including 

Page 50



Appendix D 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 33 

Drivers and Incident Commanders) and to accommodate staff attendance at risk critical 
training course; 

iii. Data Lines and Communications are forecast to overspend by £0.242 million due to 
contractual increases; and, 

iv. Part year vacant posts and training income amounting to a £0.224 million underspend 
within the Community Safety Department. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 51



Appendix E 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 34 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Children’s Services: Children’s Social Care 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 
Adolescent Services 2.900 3.490 2.331 (1.159) 
Family Placement 12.531 12.477 13.304 0.827 
Purchase Budgets 8.331 8.341 10.079 1.738 
Early Intervention and Prevention 4.981 6.123 5.500 (0.623) 
Local Children’s Safeguarding Board 0.025 0.099 (0.001) (0.100) 
Looked after Children 2.763 2.184 1.659 (0.525) 
Social Work Teams 19.233 11.500 11.383 (0.117) 
District Admin Offices 0.826 0.560 0.421 (0.139) 
Family and Disability Services 2.638 3.115 3.321 0.206 
Safeguarding Standards 1.098 1.094 0.968 (0.126) 

Other Children’s Services 1.828 1.739 1.674 (0.065) 

Total Children’s Social Care 57.154 50.722 50.639 (0.083) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast position for Children’s Social Care are outlined below: 

a. The Adolescent Services budgets are forecast to underspend by £1.159 million. 
i. The supported accommodation budget is forecast to underspend by £0.258 million due to a 

reduction in demand; 
ii. There is an underspend on staffing of £0.513 million across the service due to difficulty in 

recruiting to cover vacancies across the team; and, 
iii. There is an overachievement of income of £0.484 million in relation to Unaccompanied Asylum-

Seeking Children. 
b. The Family Placement budget is forecast to overspend by £0.827 million, this is due to the following: 

i. There is an expected overspend of £0.588 million on foster care allowances (both in-house and 
independent agencies) adoption allowances and special guardianship allowances; and, 

ii. There is also an overspend of £0.164 million on other placement costs which is used to meet 
ad-hoc costs associated with looked after children. 

iii. There is a forecast overspend of £0.071 million for an additional contribution required by the 
Regional Adoption Agency to meet the in-year deficit. This is apportioned across all the regional 

Page 52



Appendix E 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 35 

authorities involved. 
c. The Early Intervention and Prevention budget is forecast to underspend by £0.623 million, this is 

due to the following: 
i. There is an overall underspend of £0.574 million on staffing and £0.47 million across non-

staffing across all services. Whilst there have been several vacancies contributing to this 
position, costs of £0.329 million have been attributed to the Family Hub grant for those staff 
and resources involved with the delivery of the new service model; and, 

d. The Purchase budget is forecast to overspend by £1.738 million, this is due to the following: 
i. There is an expected overspend of £0.139 million on professional services associated with 

on-going court proceedings; 
ii. There is a £1.059 million overspend on external residential care placements. The forecast 

includes contract inflation and a slight increase in numbers which have gone from 45 at the 
beginning of the year to 50 at present. There have been several short-term placements since 
the beginning of the year. In addition, a saving of £0.245 million was proposed for 2022-23 
which will not be achieved. This was linked to the opening of new beds within residential 
Children’s homes. However, delays to the capital programme will result in a delay in opening 
the new home until at least June 2023; and, 

iii. There have been two young people in secure placements at Kyloe House Secure unit for 
much of the year at an additional cost of £0.555 million. 

e. There is an underspend of £0.525 million within Looked after Children, this is due to the following: 
i. Growth was built into the budget of £0.222 million for the running costs of the new residential 

beds. Due to the delays in the capital programme the beds will not be available until 2023-24 
and therefore the budget will not be required this year; and, 

ii. Kyloe House secure unit is expected to underspend by £0.288 million. A saving of £0.350 
million was proposed, but only £0.092 million will be achieved and alternative savings are 
being investigated for 2023-24. This is offset by an overachievement of income from other 
local authorities of £0.669 million following an increase in the daily bed price which will 
contribute towards an overspend on utilities of £0.146 million. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of several 
minor variations within each area. 

 

 

Page 53



Appendix F 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 36 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Children’s Services: Education & Skills 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Director of Education & Skills 1.010 0.276 0.211 (0.065) 

Curriculum & Learning 0.253 0.095 0.105 0.010 

Alternative Education (Virtual Headteacher) 0.413 0.479 0.469 (0.010) 

Special Educational Needs & Disability 7.172 7.829 9.834 2.005 

School Organisation 39.928 10.070 9.922 (0.148) 

School Improvement 0.001 0.000 0.066 0.066 

Total Education & Skills 48.777 18.749 20.607 1.858 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast position for Education and Skills are outlined below: 

a. The Special Educational Needs & Disability (SEND) budget is forecast to overspend by £2.005 
million due to: 
i. SEND Home to School Transport has an overspend of £2.237 million for the 407 routes 

currently transporting 1,033 pupils and 550 escorts. Severe budgetary pressures emerged 
earlier in the financial year as a result of fuel price increases and driver availability, which led 
to a need to re-tender resulting in increased costs or additional monthly payments to assist 
operators. Further pressures have also arisen due to growth in the number of routes and the 
relocation of the Emily Wilding Davison Special School. 

ii. There are staffing and travel underspends of £0.216 million across council funded SEND 
services due to several vacant posts. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 54



Appendix G 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 37 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Children’s Services: Dedicated Schools’ Grant 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Central Schools Block 2.833 2.477 2.190 (0.287) 

Early Years Block 17.118 18.407 17.946 (0.461) 

High Needs Block 37.252 44.316 44.300 (0.016) 

Schools Block 86.493 86.113 85.596 (0.517) 

Total Dedicated Schools’ Grant 143.696 151.313 150.032 (1.281) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

a. In 2022-23 the Council expects to receive Dedicated Schools’ Grant totalling £151.313 million, 
which is ring-fenced and will be passported through to fund schools; with an element retained 
centrally by the Council to provide a range of support to schools. Schools that have transferred to 
academy status receive their funding directly from the Department for Education – this amounts 
to a further £124.792 million for 2022-23. 

b. The 2022-23 budget includes £1.063 million of the overall grant surplus from the previous year of 
£4.032 million. 

c. The Central Schools Block is expected to underspend by £0.287 million, this is due to the 
following: 
i. There is an underspend of £0.244 million on the revenue contribution to capital budget. This 

is a historic commitment where the funding is decreasing by 25% year on year. At the end 
of 2021-22 contributions to a historical project at Hexham Priory special school ceased, 
when the funding reduces by a further 25% in 2023-24 the budget will come back into line. 

d. The Early Years Block is expecting to underspend by £0.461 million, this is due to the following: 
i. Following receipt of the census data for January 2023 a forecast position has been included 

for the various early years funded streams (2/3/4-year-old provision, Disabled Access 
Funding and Early Years Pupil Premium). An overall underspend of £0.429 million is 
expected, however this includes £0.378 million which was transferred in from the EY block 
reserve as a contingency and has not been required in year. Much of the underspend 
relates to DAF or 3 and 4-year-old funding provision. 

ii.  
e. During 2021-22 all school phases increased their reserves due to their partial closure for some 

pupils and the additional grant funding they have been able to access as a result of Covid-19. 
This excludes Trust Schools as their school balances are held separately from the main school 
reserve. Following indicative budget updates, the estimated position for 2022-23 shows that 

Page 55



Appendix G 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 38 

schools are expecting a significant reduction in their balances of £2.949 million overall: 

 Closing School 
Reserve 

Closing School 
Reserve 

Estimated 
School Reserve 

 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

 £m £m £m 

Primary/First 3.641 4.092 2.715 

Middle 0.862 1.023 0.624 

Secondary/High (0.383) 0.623 0.360 

Special/PRU 1.330 2.439 1.529 

Overall 5.450 8.177 5.228 

The impact of pay awards and inflation on energy and resources has had a detrimental impact on 
school balances and, whilst additional funding has been announced for 2023-24, schools are expected 
to meet these pressures from their reserves for 2022-23. Overall, there are currently 18 schools 
predicting a deficit position compared to 12 schools earlier in the year. We are working closely with 
these schools to ensure they are working towards a sustainable budget recovery plan. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 56



Appendix H 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 39 

 

 
Summary by Service 2021-22 

Outturn 
Budget Forecast 

Outturn 
Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Customer Services 1.647 2.227 2.006 (0.221) 

Registrars & Coroners 1.450 1.439 1.712 0.273 

Tourism, Culture, Leisure & Heritage 12.258 8.695 8.763 0.068 

Improvement & Innovation 1.391 2.149 2.215 0.066 

Northumberland Communities Together 0.000 0.520 0.520 0.000 

Information Governance 0.064 0.302 0.283 (0.019) 

County Hall Restaurant 0.310 0.031 0.067 0.036 

Complaints 0.064 0.466 0.405 (0.061) 

Total Communities & Business Development 17.184 15.829 15.971 0.142 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast position for Communities & Business Development is outlined below: 

a. Customer Services is forecast to underspend by £0.221 million mainly due to a £0.262 million 
underspend on staffing vacancies within the Contact Centre and Service Centres. 

b. Registrars & Coroners is forecast to overspend by £0.273 million due to: 
i. A £0.446 million overspend within Coroners in relation to post mortems, body storage and 

medical fees; and, 
ii. A £0.331 million underspend within Registrars due to an over recovery of income from 

weddings. 
c. The Tourism, Culture, Leisure & Heritage Service is forecast to overspend by £0.068 million due to: 

i. It is forecast that Active Northumberland will require financial support of £1.277 million by 
year end. Currently, support of £1.051 million has been committed in response to the Covid-
19 pandemic and in recognition of significant inflationary pressures. This contribution has 
been set aside within a reserve and will be drawn down at year end to partially offset the 
overall forecast pressure. The remaining £0.226 million shortfall is a budgetary pressure. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Communities & Business Development 

Page 57



Appendix I 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 40 

 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Revenues & Benefits 2.428 1.544 1.088 (0.456) 

Information Services 10.132 10.997 11.175 0.178 

Internal Audit 0.594 0.892 0.811 (0.081) 

Corporate Finance 29.787 6.284 5.853 (0.431) 

Strategic Property 5.666 7.465 7.473 0.008 

Procurement 0.358 0.834 0.085 (0.749) 

Total Finance 48.965 28.016 26.485 (1.531) 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Finance 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast position for Finance are outlined below: 

a. The Revenues and Benefits Service is forecast to underspend by £0.057 million due to: 
i. A net underspend on staffing amounting to £0.210 million due to a number of vacant posts 

throughout the service offset by costs relating to temporary staffing cover; 
ii. Additional new burdens grant income of £0.682 million, mainly for the Energy Rebate Grant of 

£0.382 million, Business Rates Reliefs of £0.104 million and the Discretionary Housing Admin 
Grant of £0.093 million; and, 

iii. A net overspend on Cost of Benefits in relation to Rent Allowance and Rent Rebate payments 
and claimed subsidy of £0.210 million. This forecast is due to the payments made in relation to 
the increased application of Supported Exempt Accommodation schemes which attract a 
reduced amount of subsidy. 

iv. An underachievement of £0.193 million on recovered council tax legal costs due to the support 
provided by the Hardship Fund scheme which has reduced the liability of working age council 
tax support claimants which in turn has reduced the number of liability orders that have needed 
to be obtained. 

Page 58



Appendix I 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 41 

b. Information Services is forecast to underspend by £0.178 million due to: 
i. An underspend of £0.452 million due to a number of vacancies within the service which are 

being addressed by a recently approved staffing changes proposal. The recruitment process is 
now underway to appoint suitable officers to the available posts in the coming months; and, 

ii. A £0.473 reduction in the level of income expected to be received via recharges and from 
external bodies following a full review. 

Within the Print Unit it is proposed to create a permanent Print Assistant (Band 4) post which will be 
fully funded from additional recurrent income generated by the Print Unit. 

c. Corporate Finance is forecast to underspend by £0.431 million due to a net underspend of £0.318 
million due to vacant posts, some of which are have been filled in year. 

d. Procurement is forecast to underspend by £0.749 million due to an overachievement of procurement 
rebate income of £0.435 million and staffing vacancies of £0.166 million. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a number 
of minor variations within each area. 

Page 59



Appendix J 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 42 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Planning and Local Services 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Local Services Management 27.696 24.635 24.481 (0.154) 

Neighbourhood Services 10.655 12.439 13.322 0.883 

Waste PFI Contract 10.146 19.734 17.784 (1.950) 

Technical Services 28.435 22.903 23.914 1.011 

Total Local Services 76.932 79.711 79.501 (0.210) 

Planning 7.373 1.362 2.151 0.789 

Corporate Health & Safety 0.275 0.321 0.247 (0.074) 

Total Planning & Local Services 84.580 81.394 81.899 0.505 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast position for the Planning and Local Services Directorate is outlined 
below: 

a. Neighbourhood Services is forecast to overspend by £0.883 million. 
i. Due to increased fuel prices, it is anticipated that vehicle fuel will be overspent by £0.276 

million across all service areas; 
ii. There is a forecast overspend of £0.461 million relation to staffing costs due to vacancies 

being filled by increased overtime and agency costs and waste catch up collections for the 
extra bank holiday. However, some of the additional costs can be attributed to increased 
waste collections and are offset by additional income; 

iii. There is a forecast overachievement of income of £0.728 million. This includes 
overachievements in Commercial Waste of £0.610 million, garden waste of £0.073 million, 
NHS waste collection of £0.101 million, £0.079 million grounds maintenance and rental 
income across the County and bulky waste of £0.036 million. This is offset by an 
underachievement of fleet income of £0.102 million, market income of £0.055 million and 
burial income of £0.032 million; 

iv. There is a forecast overspend of £0.323 million in relation to gas and electric which has 
previously been forecast centrally; and, 

v. There are a number of other overspends including £0.281 million for vehicle/plant hire, 
vehicle repairs, equipment and hired services, £0.138 million due to inflationary pressures 
impacting on the unit costs for purchase of replacement bins and £0.170 million additional 

Page 60



Appendix J 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 43 

training costs. 
b. The Waste PFI Contract is forecast to underspend by £1.950 million. This is due to lower than 

expected waste volumes being generated by households and forecast continuation of this trend for 
the remainder of the year, as well as higher commodity prices from the sale of recyclable materials 
which it is anticipated will deliver an in-year surplus on the recycling services adjustment. 

c. Technical Services is forecast to overspend by £1.101 million mainly due to: 
i. Home to School Transport is forecast to overspend by £2.240 million. Significant issues 

have emerged around the provision of Home to School Transport as a result of fuel price 
increases and driver availability, with some operators being unable to fulfil contracts and the 
need to re-tender resulting in increased costs. Since the introduction of an inflationary uplift 
payment no contracts have been returned to the Council. This also includes a pressure of 
£0.118 million which arose from the finalisation of the routes for the current academic year 
and a review of the contracts in the south east of the County which has been finalised 
resulting in a cost increase of £0.130 million; 

ii. Streetlighting is forecast to overspend by £0.585 million due to increases in electricity 
expenditure due to a 53% increase on prior year costs based on the figures provided by 
North East Procurement Organisation (NEPO) and the energy providers. If the Streetlighting 
replacement and modernisation programme had not been undertaken then the increased 
estimated energy consumption would have resulted in an additional £4.000 million 
overspend; 

iii. Highway maintenance is forecast to overspend by £1.086 million due mainly to rising 
material costs, non-recoverable out of hours expenditure and increased traffic management 
costs; 

iv. Network Management is forecast to underspend by £0.864 million due to an 
overachievement of parking charges of £0.225 million, penalty charge notices of £0.228 
million, rents and leases from traders of £0.072 increased road closure fees of £0.113 
million, permit fee income of £0.063 million, fixed penalty notices of £0.054 million and 
sample inspection fees of £0.107 million; and, 

v. The Todstead stabilisation scheme is now due to commence April/May 2023. There was a 
budget for £2.500 million for a contribution to be made from revenue in 2022-23 to part 
finance the scheme but this will now be required in 2023-24. The underspend shown here is 
offset by an under-recovery in the Finance budget so has no effect on the Council’s net 
position.  

d. Planning is forecast to overspend by £0.789 million mainly due to: 
i. £0.800 million underachievement of planning fee income. The income budget was increased 

by £0.400 million as part of the 2021-22 budget setting process in anticipation of an increase 
to the national planning fee structure. The Planning Bill proposing the change, having been 
put on hold, is now subsequently progressing but it is not anticipated that this saving will be 
achieved in the current financial year. There has also been slippage in the submission of a 
large scale project which was anticipated to bring a £0.244 million fee, this is now not 
expected to be submitted until Autumn 2023; 

ii. £0.175 million under recovery of Pre-Application Fees. The appetite for this service has been 
diminishing so the service is in the process of being refreshed and relaunched. The 

Page 61



Appendix J 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 44 

timescale means this will be unlikely to achieve the savings target built into the 2022-23 
budget; 

iii. £0.200 million under achievement of Planning Performance Agreements. This service was 
introduced in 2021-22 and is very much in its infancy. Uptake of the scheme has been 
slower than anticipated during this market penetration phase; and, 

iv. £0.391 million underspend on staffing due to vacancies currently within the Service and a 
reduction in the use of agency staff. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 62



Appendix K 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 45 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Public Health & Community Services 
 

Summary by Service  2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service  £m £m £m £m 
Housing General Fund  1.062 1.171 1.199 0.028 
Public Protection  2.676 3.550 3.396 (0.154) 
Public Health 0.024 0.067 0.067 0.000 
Total Public Health & Community 
Services  3.762 4.788 4.662 (0.126) 

   
NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more  
There are no significant variances to date. 

  

Page 63



Appendix L 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 46 

 
Summary by Service 2021-22 

Outturn 
Budget Forecast 

Outturn 
Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Staffing and Support Costs 0.591 1.716 1.575 (0.141) 

Stop Smoking Initiatives 0.442 0.335 0.240 (0.095) 

Drug & Alcohol Services 3.822 4.465 4.451 (0.014) 

Sexual Health Services 2.215 2.143 2.191 0.048 

0-19 Public Health Services 6.309 6.906 7.094 0.188 

Integrated Wellbeing Service 1.219 1.331 1.116 (0.215) 

Other Health Initiatives 2.059 2.490 2.649 0.159 

Total Public Health & Community Services 16.657 19.386 19.316 (0.070) 
 

NOTES 

a. The Council’s Public Health service will receive grant funding of £17.366 million in 2022-23. This 
funding is ring-fenced for the provision of services to improve the health of the local population and 
reduce health inequalities. 

b. The terms of the main grant allow unspent allocations to be carried over into the next financial year. 
Public Health carried forward a reserve of £5.150 million to financial year 2022-23.  

c. The Council received an allocation of £0.171 million from the Public Health England Weight 
Management Services Grant in 2021-22 which was ringfenced to support the commissioning of adult 
behavioural weight management services. Unspent funding of £0.069 million was carried forward to 
financial year 2022-23. 

d. Additional one-off funding of £0.350 million was secured from Public Health England to support drug 
treatment crime and harm reduction activity in 2021-22. Unspent funding of £0.197 million was carried 
forward to financial year 2022-23 to continue the activity. An additional tranche of £0.479 million has 
been received in financial year 2022-23 to continue the support in this area. 

e. Funding of £0.120 million was awarded from the Improvement and Development Agency for Local 
Government in 2021-22 to support the Heart of Blyth project with is part of the Shaping Places for 
Healthier Lives programme. The majority of the activity will take place this financial year and £0.108 
million was carried forward to 2022-23. Additional funding of £0.100 million has been received in 
financial year 2022-23. 

f. Funding of £1.000 million has been received from Northumberland Clinical Commissioning Group to 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Public Health & Community Services - Public Health 

Page 64



Appendix L 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 47 

support joint investment in population health management interventions. 

 

g. The Council is contributing funding of £0.067 million to support the provision of Public Health services 
in financial year 2022-23. 

h. Underspends within the Integrated Wellbeing Service and demand led services will be used in year to 
fund initiatives to tackle health inequalities which were approved at Cabinet 13 September 2022. 

i. It is anticipated that £0.070 million will be carried forward to the reserve balance at the end of 2022-23. 

Page 65



Appendix N 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 48 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Public Health & Community Services - Housing Revenue Account 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Housing Management 6.093 6.674 6.361 (0.313) 

Housing Special 0.796 0.732 0.830 0.098 

Repairs and Maintenance 8.241 8.572 9.354 0.782 

Housing Capital Works 0.546 0.499 0.588 0.089 

Other HRA Services 13.263 13.748 13.924 0.176 

HRA Income (29.923) (30.239) (30.275) (0.036) 

Total HRA Expenditure & Income (0.984) (0.014) 0.782 0.796 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast variance for the Housing Revenue Account are as follows:  

a. Housing Management is forecast to be underspent by £0.313 million due to part year vacancies 
and the creation of additional posts to strengthen the Estates Management Function. 

b. Repairs and Maintenance is forecast to be overspent by £0.782 million. £1.099 million relates to 
additional repairs and disrepairs which have involved the use of contractors and are partly due to 
Storm Arwen. Council Tax on void properties is forecast to overspend by £0.083 million. Transport 
Related Charges are forecast to overspend by £0.066 mainly due to increased fleet charge 
following a replacement vehicle programme. Salaries and agency staff costs are forecast to 
underspend by £0.390 million and insurance receipts received on fire damaged properties £0.059 
million. 

c. Other HRA Services is forecast to underspend by £0.176 million. The main reasons for this are: 
i. Depreciation charges have increased by £0.460 million following an upward revaluation of 

Council dwellings by the Council’s external valuers;  
ii. Interest payable on HRA borrowing has increased by £0.693 million. This is due to the 

Internal borrowing rates payable to the general fund, which are based on the 30-year PWLB 
rates and are forecast to increase from 2.1% to 4.22% following a rise in the Bank of England 
interest rates; and, 

iii. Interest received on balances has increased by £0.964 million. This is due to an increase in 
the 3-year SONIA rate which is forecast to average at 2.29% for the current year. The budget 
was set at an interest rate of 0.02% following the plunge in rates in 2020-21. 

Page 66



Appendix N 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 49 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

 

  

Page 67



Appendix N 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 50 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service:  Regeneration 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Economy & Regeneration 2.641 2.944 2.312 (0.632) 

Executive Director of Regeneration, Commercial 
& Economy 0.074 0.203 0.020 (0.183) 

Culture 0.000 1.418 1.390 (0.028) 

Climate Change 0.099 0.562 0.479 (0.083) 

Total Regeneration 2.814 5.127 4.201 (0.926) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast position for the Regeneration Service is outlined below: 

a. Economy and Regeneration is forecast to underspend by £0.232 million due to vacant posts 
within the service and the inability to recruit into posts either through a lack of applicants or 
having to readvertise resulting in posts being vacant for longer than anticipated.  

b. Concessionary Travel is forecast to underspend by £0.400 million. Following the lifting of Covid-
19 restrictions the Department for Transport has allowed local authorities to negotiate with the 
local travel providers regarding the reimbursement rates payable in respect of concessionary 
travel. The Council has been able to negotiate two fixed price deals with the two major operators 
for the period April 2022 to March 2023 rather than based on a reimbursement rate per journey. 
This has provided budget certainty for all parties as passenger numbers are yet to recover to pre-
pandemic levels. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

Page 68



Appendix O 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 51 

Forecast Revenue Outturn - Detailed budget summary by Service 

Service: Corporate Expenditure and Income 
 

Summary by Service 2021-22 
Outturn 

Budget Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Service £m £m £m £m 

Corporate Items 45.504 20.299 22.100 1.801 

Treasury Management (25.168) (23.174) (25.023) (1.849) 

Capital Financing 87.896 37.347 37.391 0.044 

Corporate Funding (410.624) (382.624) (380.955) 1.669 

Total Other Corporate Expenditure & 
Income (302.392) (348.152) (346.487) 1.665 

 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast position for the Corporate Expenditure and Income is outlined below: 

a. Corporate Items is forecast to overspend by £1.801 million due to: 
i. A forecast overspend of £4.841 million against the pay award contingency budget due to the 

pay award that was processed in November; along with a forecast underspend of £3.225 million 
against the general contingency budget to give a net overspend of £1.616 million 

ii. A forecast overachievement of income of £0.261 million due to the balance on the NHS 
Partnership Agreement reserve being transferred back into revenue as it is no longer required; 
and, 

iii. A forecast overspend of £0.494 million relating to unallocated savings that will not be achieved 
in 2022-23. However, £0.253 million of these savings will be achieved in 2023-24. 

b. Treasury Management is forecast to underspend by £1.849 million due to: 
i. The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2022-23 was £0.734 million. Due to the significant 

increase in interest rates in recent months, and the higher than anticipated level of balances 
available for investment, returns have already exceeded the budget. Based on existing 
investments, returns already total £1.635 million, and will likely be in excess of £2.000 million by 
the year end, leading to an over-achievement of income of around £1.300 million; and, 

ii. Total external borrowing has decreased by £11.027 million, from £756.930 million at the start of 
the year to £745.903 million at 31 December 2022. This is due to maturing existing loans. 
However, taking into account future maturities and the anticipated further borrowing 
requirement of around £50.000 million, overall borrowing is projected to total around £775.378 
million by 31 March 2023. Although savings resulting from the reduced levels of borrowing will 
be partly offset by the higher than expected interest rates payable on those new loans taken out 
within the year, it is expected to generate an overall underspend of around £0.543 million 

Page 69



Appendix O 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 52 

compared to the original interest payable budget for 2022-23 of £23.527 million. 
 

c. Corporate Funding is forecast to overspend by £1.669 million due to: 
i. Business Rates underspend of £4.336 million due to:  

i. Additional Section 31 grants of £3.252 million (including £2.609 million in relation to the 
Covid Additional Relief Fund (CARF) which will be transferred to the Collection Fund 
Smoothing Reserve to offset the projected deficit to be distributed in relation to this scheme 
in 2023-24; 

ii. Additional renewable energy income of £0.506 million, and; 
iii. £0.578 million in relation to Northumberland’s share of the national levy account surplus 

announced as part of the local government finance settlement.  
ii. Earmarked Reserves overspend of £6.005 million due to:  

i. £2.609 million transfer to the Collection Fund Smoothing Reserve in relation to CARF to 
offset the deficit which is to be distributed in 2023-24; 

ii. £2.500 million due to a contribution from reserves allocated to combat the effects of Severe 
Weather now not being drawn down from reserves until 2023-24 when work will 
commence. There is a corresponding reduction in expenditure with Local Services; and, 

iii. The budgeted transfers from the Collection Fund Smoothing Reserve of £0.342 million for 
Business Rates and £0.554 million for Council Tax in relation to the three-year spread of 
the 2020-21 deficits were not required due to the surplus from renewable energy and the 
levy account distribution. 

Note - The difference between the figures shown in the table and the explanations above consist of a 
number of minor variations within each area. 

 

Page 70



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 53 

Key Capital Movements by Service 

 

Service: Adult Social Care and Commissioning – Forecast variance (£2.067) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

 £m £m 

Adult Social Care Capital Fund - (0.100) 

Disabled Facilities Grant - (0.072) 

Person Centred Care Information System (SWIFT) - (0.050) 

Supported Housing (1.814) - 

Sea Lodge Wet Room - (0.031) 

Total  (1.814) (0.253) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast variance for Adult Social Care and Commissioning Services are 
outlined below: 

a. Supported Housing – The budget is no longer required as it is the intention is to use the Adult 
Social Care capital external funding to support the market. 

 
 

Service: Chief Executive – Forecast variance (£0.003) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

 £m £m 

General (0.003) - 

Total  (0.003) - 
 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

There are no significant variances to date. 

 
 
 

Page 71



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 54 

Service: Children’s Services – Forecast variance (£5.047) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

 £m £m 

Basic Needs Programme - (0.066) 

Bedlington Whitley Memorial & West End First School (0.025) - 

Children’s Homes Provision - (0.467) 

Collingwood Children’s Centre 0.001 - 

Darras Hall Primary New Build (0.011) - 

Devolved Formula Capital 0.602 - 

Gilbert Ward Academy – Contribution - (1.058) 

Hexham New Build Schools (Hexham QE Site) (1.010) - 

Kyloe House - (0.597) 

Morpeth First School - Contribution - (0.057) 

New Hartley Classroom - Contribution - (0.023) 

Ponteland Secondary School & Leisure Centre 0.016 - 

Port of Blyth – Welding & Fabrication Centre (0.115) (0.739) 

RDA Relocation - (0.151) 

Schools Building Programme (SCIP) - (1.038) 

SCIP - Mobile Classroom Replacement Programme  - (0.175) 

Whittingham Primary School (0.140) - 

Wise Academy – Haltwhistle Schools 0.006 - 

Total  (0.676) (4.371) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast variance for Children’s Services are outlined below: 
a. Children’s Homes Provision - £0.600 million was earmarked for the purchase of a second home 

in Ashington, which has now been identified and an offer accepted, but this will not complete until 
2023-24. 

b. Devolved Formula Capital - Total Devolved Formula Capital allocated to projects by Schools for 
2022-23 is £1.061 million, it is estimated that 90% of these projects will be complete by 31st 
March 2023. The overspend will be met by grant not drawn down into the capital programme. 

Page 72



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 55 

c. Gilbert Ward Academy (Contribution) - Department for Education have delayed the building of the 
Gilbert Ward Academy from September 2023 to January 2024, therefore the contribution being 
made to the scheme will be required in 2023-24. 

d. Kyloe House – Due to delays with Legal sign off it is now expected that the High Dependency 
Unit, Alder Yard Screens, Entrance Gates and Willow Yard will complete in 2023-24. 

e. Port of Blyth Welding and Fabrication Centre – The project has been delayed due to tender and 
material lead time. The contract value of the tender returned was lower than initial estimates. It is 
now estimated the project will complete in May 2023, as such the Capital Programme for 2023-24 
will need to include the reprofiling set out above. 

f. Hexham New Build Schools (Hexham QE Site) – There is an underspend against the original 
profile due to delays in the programme. The final account is currently under negotiation and the 
final outcome is expected by the end of the year. It is expected that this will be under the original 
budget. 

g. Schools Building Programme (SCIP) - Large scale schemes that were due for completion in 
March 2023 have encountered delays due to lack of materials and availability of subcontractors. 
This significant change has resulted in SCIP being underspent in-year and requires funding to be 
reprofiled into 2023-24 to allow the schemes to be completed. 

 
 
 

Service: Communities and Business Development – forecast variance (£0.499) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

Project £m £m 

Berwick Leisure Centre - (0.600) 

Newbiggin Sports Centre 0.101 - 

Total  0.101 (0.600) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast variance for Communities and Business Development are outlined 
below: 

a. Berwick Leisure Centre – Following the administration of the main contractor (Tolent) there will be 
a delay in the completion of the outstanding works (car park, play park and landscaping) whilst a 
new contractor was found. A new contractor has been appointed to undertake the outstanding 
work and will commence on site on 27 March. 

 
 

Service: Finance – forecast variance (£0.993) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

Page 73



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 56 

Project £m £m 

Hardware Infrastructure  (0.020) 

Server Infrastructure  (0.020) 

Library Kiosks  (0.052) 

CISCO Infrastructure  (0.553) 

County Hall IT Infrastructure 0.004  

Cloud Migration  (0.152) 

Office 365 Implementation 0.011  

IT Backup and Recovery  (0.100) 

Alnwick Lindisfarne Site 0.181 - 

Leisure Buildings – Essential Remedials (0.101) - 

Property Stewardship Fund (0.181) (0.010) 

Total  (0.086) (0.907) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reason for the forecast variance for Finance is outlined below: 

a. CISCO Infrastructure – Due to delays in service delivery this scheme has been delayed and will 
run into 2023-24. 

 

 
  

Page 74



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 57 

Service: Planning and Local Services – forecast variance (£1.072) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

Project £m £m 

Car Park Programme~ 0.015 - 

Blyth Cycleway Improvement Scheme* 0.180 - 

Briar Dene Surface Water Scheme (0.093) - 
Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) 
– Alnwick (0.427) - 

FCERM – Beadnell - (0.040) 

FCERM – Berwick (0.239) - 

FCERM – Fenwick’s Close (0.127) - 

FCERM – Hepscott - (0.030) 

FCERM – Ovingham - 0.043 

FCERM – Stannington (0.040) - 
Highways Maintenance in U and C Roads and 
Footpaths - (0.268) 

Local Transport Plan* (1.496) - 

Lynemouth Bay Landfill Encapsulation - 0.030 

Members Local Improvement Schemes (0.052) (0.226) 

Morpeth Northern Bypass 0.268 - 

New DfT Challenge Fund Support Bid* 0.527 - 

Next Generation Flood Resilience - (0.226) 

Salt Barns - (0.090) 

Seahouses Main Pier Refurbishment 0.022 - 
Streetlighting Modernisation and Replacement 
Programme 0.038 - 

Union Chain Bridge* 1.418 - 

Country Parks Improvement Programme (0.006) - 

England Coastal Path (Bamburgh to Scottish Borders) - (0.054) 

Fleet Replacement Programme - 0.286 

Food Waste Collection and Recycling Pilot (0.023) - 

Page 75



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 58 

Hirst Area Containerisation of Waste - (0.200) 

Parks Enhancement Programme - (0.262) 

Total  (0.035) (1.037) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast variance for Planning and Local Services are outlined below: 

a. FCERM – Alnwick – Due to a significant funding gap in the scheme this has been deferred within 
the Environment Agency’s programme of works. 

b. Highways Maintenance in U and C Roads and Footpaths – The programme of works has 
progressed well during the financial year although a small number of schemes will be delivered in 
April/May. 

c. Local Transport Plan – The pressures on Union Chain Bridge and Challenge Fund Support will be 
accommodated from the additional funding (LTP) released from Todstead so that existing 
allocated LTP schemes are not affected. Schemes continue to progress on site, but it is envisaged 
that some schemes will commence in 2023-24 or will span the two financial years depending on 
commencement dates. 

d. Morpeth Northern Bypass – due to the settlement of the land acquisition claim from Persimmons 
(£0.175 million) and for the return of the final licenced area (£0.093 million) to the landowner. The 
Persimmon’s element will be covered from a transfer from the legal challenges reserve and the 
additional licenced area payment is to be funded from the LTP. 

e. New DfT Challenge Fund Support Bid – Steel Structures – costs have increased due to 
inflationary cost increases and unexpected bridge defects identified during the completion of the 
works. 

f. Union Chain Bridge - Further works on the scheme have identified additional work due to the age 
and condition of the structure. The works to reconstruct the bridge have also been more complex 
and time consuming than was originally envisaged, significantly prolonging the construction 
period. The forecast cost to complete the scheme shows a £1.418 million overspend. Whilst both 
the Council and Scottish Borders Council are liable for a 50/50 share of any overspend, 
discussions are being held with the Heritage Lottery Fund around any additional grant funding that 
may be available to try to reduce the additional funds required from the two Council’s. 

g. Fleet Replacement Programme – Reprofiling had previously been identified from 2022-23 to 2023-
24 due to the long lead in times and the supply of vehicles still being challenging due to 
component and logistical issues. However, it is now anticipated that two refuse collection vehicles 
will be delivered in March rather than 2023-24 as previously notified. 

h. Parks Enhancement Programme – The scheme at Isabella in Blyth has commenced but schemes 
at Ridley Park and Prudhoe Eastwood are expected to be delivered in 2023-24. 

~Construction of the new car parks at Morpeth Goosehill, Hexham Alemouth Road (Bunker site), 
Berwick Quayside and Amble Turner Street East has now been successfully completed. Costs of 
these schemes have however risen significantly compared to original estimates - Morpeth Goosehill 
(£0.740 million), Amble Turner Street (£0.400 million), Berwick Quayside (£0.205 million), Hexham 
Alemouth Road (£0.067 million). Cost increases are due to a combination of unexpected ground 

Page 76



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 59 

conditions, delays due to encountering uncharted utilities and drainage, necessary minor design 
changes, national increases in construction inflation affecting material and subcontractor costs, the 
local government pay award and supply chain delays for some materials and equipment as part of 
overall national construction supply chain issues. These overspends are being funded through the 
Car Parks General allocation within the MTFP. Although specific allocations remain for former 
Alnwick Duchess site car park and Corbridge, consideration is currently being given to how to fund 
other remaining proposed car parks projects at Boulmer, Newbiggin and Berwick Castlegate. 

*The underspend shown on Local Transport Plan will be used to fund the additional costs on New DfT 
Challenge Fund Support Bid and Union Chain Bridge. This is being covered from the additional 
funding released from Todstead so that existing allocated LTP schemes are not affected. 

  

Page 77



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 60 

Service: Public Health and Community Services – forecast variance (£3.208) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

Project £m £m 

Major Repairs Reserve - (0.253) 

Affordable Homes - (0.478) 

Felton (HUSK) - (0.163) 

Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund - (1.163) 

Green Homes – Social Housing (1.151) - 

Total  (1.151) (2.057) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast variance for Public Health and Community Services are outlined 
below: 

a. Major Repairs Reserve – Delivery of the programme has been delayed due to longer preparation 
time being required and access to materials as a result of Covid-19. 

b. Affordable Homes – Some of the new build programme will now be delivered in 2023-24. 
c. Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund – delivery of the programme has been delayed following 

revisions to the scope of energy efficiency measures to be delivered within the project. 
d. Green Homes – Social Housing - This scheme is not proceeding following the suspension in 

working with an external partner. 

  

Page 78



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 61 

Service: Regeneration – forecast variance (£13.723) million 

Summary by Project Under/ Overspend Reprofiling 

 £m £m 

Ashington High Street Improvement Programme - (0.055) 
Bedlington Town Centre Redevelopment Phase 1 
and 2 - (0.600) 

Borderlands – Carlisle Station - (2.018) 

Borderlands – Carlisle University - (0.029) 

Energising Blyth Programme - (1.175) 

Great Northumberland Forest - (0.200) 

Port of Berwick Grant - (0.050) 

Strategic Regeneration Projects – Ad Gefrin - (0.090) 
Ashington Northeast Quarter Redevelopment 
Phase 1 0.236 - 

Loan to NELEP – Fairmoor (2.000) - 
Loan to NELEP – Ramparts Business Park, 
Berwick (0.800) - 

County Hall Solar Car Port - 1.264 

Green Homes – Private Sector Housing (LAD1) (0.282) - 
Green Homes – Sustainable Warmth Grant 
(LAD2) (2.114) - 

Ground Source Heat Pumps/Solar PV (0.121) - 
Sustainable Warmth Competition – Home 
Upgrade Grant Phase 1 (HUG 1) (3.506) - 

Sustainable Warmth Grant (LAD 3) - (2.106) 

Waste Transfer Sites – Energy Projects (0.077) - 

Total  (8.664) (5.059) 
 

NOTES - Year End Variances of £0.250 million or more 

The main reasons for the forecast variance for Regeneration are outlined below: 

a. Bedlington Town Centre Redevelopment Phase 1 and 2 due to the contractor (Tolent) 
going into administration with a new contractor currently being sought to complete the 
development. 

Page 79



Appendix P 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 62 

b. Borderlands – Carlisle Station due to the project being delayed by the recent Local 
Government Reorganisation in Cumbria. 

c. Energising Blyth Programme – The majority of the reprofiling relates to the Future High 
Street Fund due to delays in receiving confirmation of the funding and longer design and 
operator procurement processes to ensure scheme viability. The majority of the reprofiling 
will occur in 2023-24 with the Council expenditure forecast to take place in later years due 
to the constraints of when the grant must be incurred by. 

d. Loan to NELEP – Fairmoor - The requirement is currently part of a wider review. If the 
scheme is to proceed, then it is expected it would be funded from the Strategic 
Regeneration Projects budget. The requirements will be confirmed as part of the wider 
MTFP review. 

e. Loan to NELEP – Ramparts Business Park - The requirement is currently part of a wider 
review. If the scheme is to proceed, then it is expected they would be funded from the 
Strategic Regeneration Projects budget. The requirements will be confirmed as part of the 
wider MTFP review. 

f. County Hall Solar Car Port - Budget was previously reprofiled in September 2022 to 2023-
24. Since this forecast position, the contractor took earlier delivery of the battery which 
was agreed could be installed on site early to assist with their cashflow and avoid 
significant double handling craneage costs. It was also agreed for drainage attenuation 
works to proceed in advance of the main contract works to assist with meeting the target 
completion date of 30 June 2023. 

g. Green Homes – Private Sector Housing (LAD1) - This project is complete and has been 
audited. An overpayment of grant has already been returned to BEIS to the value of 
£1.059 million. 

h. Green Homes – Sustainable Warmth Grant (LAD2) - This project is currently being audited 
with a significant underspend anticipated due to issues with Procurement delays meaning 
the project could not be delivered within the timescales specified by the Department for 
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. 

i. Green Homes – Sustainable Warmth Grant (LAD3) – An application has been submitted to 
the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) requesting an 
extension to the scheme in 2023-24. 

j. Sustainable Warmth Competition – Home Upgrade Grant Phase 1 (HUG1) - The grant is 
to be repaid to the BEIS as the scheme was superceded by HUG2 with the Council 
awarded up to £12.400 million for this element. 

Page 80



Appendix Q 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 63 

Items approved from the Council’s Contingency 

The following items have been approved from the Council’s contingency during 
January to February 2023. 

Non-Recurrent Funding 2022-23 2023-24 

 £ £ 

Alendi Consulting Ltd – strategic performance support 12,170 - 

Bruton Knowes – building measured surveys 135,000 - 

Wide Area Network (WAN) consultancy costs 126,000  

Total amount drawn from Contingency non-recurrently 273,170 - 

In addition, the following items are earmarked from the Council’s contingency before 
the end of March 2023 and will be actioned once the full year’s expenditure has been 
incurred. 

Recurrent Funding Earmarked 2022-23 2023-24 

 £ £ 

Release of Firefighters’ pay award 405,340 405,340 

Total amount earmarked from Contingency recurrently 405,340 405,340 

 

Non-Recurrent Funding Earmarked 2022-23 2023-24 

 £ £ 

Band 11 WorkSmart and Community Hub support post 64,030 - 

Leisure contract – specialist legal and procurement advice 60,000 - 

Consultancy fees – Interim Monitoring Officer & Director of Corporate Governance 321,120 - 

Vehicle livery – return of contingency funding due to works being delayed -99,190 - 

Temporary acting up arrangements within Place & Regeneration 12,710 - 

Interim Executive arrangements to continue for a further 6 months 146,590 - 

Total amount earmarked from Contingency non-recurrently 505,260 - 

 

Page 81



Appendix R 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 64 

Movement in the Council’s Reserves 

 

Opening 
Balance at 1 

April 2022* 
Movement 
in Reserve Commitments 

Proposed 
Movement 

Forecast 
Closing 

Balance at 31 
March 2023 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

General 
Reserves/Balances          

General Fund (70.081) - 25.000 - (42.081) 

Total General Reserve (70.081) - 25.000 - (45.081) 

       
Ring-Fenced 
Reserves/Balances      

Housing Revenue Account (29.874) - 0.796 - (29.078) 

Major Repairs (HRA) (10.214) - (1.102) - (11.316) 

HRA Capital Investment (2.177) - 0.262 - (1.915) 

Total Earmarked HRA 
Reserves (42.265) - (0.044) - (42.309) 

       
Specific 
Reserves/Balances      

Capital Grants Unapplied (61.304) - 10.000 - (51.304) 

Capital Receipts (0.183) - 0.183 - - 

Capital Receipts - HRA (4.768) - (1.306) - (6.074) 

Total Specific 
Reserves/Balances (66.255) - 8.877 - (57.378) 

  

Page 82

file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'General%252520Fund'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Housing%252520Revenue%252520Account%252520(HRA)'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Major%252520Repairs%252520(HRA)'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'HRA%252520Capital%252520Investment'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Capital%252520Grants%252520Unapplied'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Capital%252520Receipts'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Capital%252520Receipts%252520-%252520HRA'!A1


Appendix R 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 65 

 

Opening 
Balance at 

1 April 
2022* 

Movement 
in 

Reserve Commitments 
Proposed 

Movement 

Forecast 
Closing 

Balance at 31 
March 2023 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Earmarked Reserves       

ADC Parks & Open Spaces (0.009) 0.009 - - - 

ADC Section 106 (0.046) 0.044 - - (0.002) 

Balances held by Schools (9.192) 8.770 (5.335) - (5.757) 
Borderlands Energy 
Masterplan (0.816) - - - (0.816) 

Business Recovery Reserve (2.322) - - - (2.322) 
Cessation of NHS Partnership 
Agreement (0.262) 0.262 - - - 

Collection Fund Smoothing (15.155) - 13.211 - (1.944) 

Community Led Housing (0.687) 0.073 0.015 - (0.599) 

Contain Outbreak Management (2.130) 2.130 (0.103) - (0.103) 
Council Commissioned 
Services (8.981) - 2.251 - (6.730) 

Council Transformation Fund (17.902) 0.019 1.105 - (16.778) 
Council Tax Hardship & 
Discount Scheme - - (6.588) - (6.588) 

Dedicated Schools Grant (4.032) 1.063 (1.347) - (4.316) 
Economy & Regeneration 
Investments (0.358) - 0.073 0.285 - 

Empty Dwelling Management 
Order (0.047) - (0.019) - (0.066) 

Estates Rationalisation (7.242) 0.697 0.016 - (6.529) 
Exceptional Inflationary 
Pressures (5.208) - 5.208 (1.017) (1.017) 

FRS HMICFRS Improvement (0.050) - 0.032 - (0.018) 
Firefighters’ Immediate 
Detriment (0.250) - 0.050 - (0.200) 

FPF Admin Grant (0.033) - 0.033 - - 

Food Waste - - (0.058) - (0.058) 

Page 83

https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Balances_held_by_Schools!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Business_Recovery!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#NHS_Partnership!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#NHS_Partnership!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Borderlands!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Estates_Rationalisation!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#FRS_HMICFRS_Improvement!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Fire_Immediate_Detriment!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Fire_Immediate_Detriment!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#FPF_Admin_grant!A1


Appendix R 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 66 

 

Opening 
Balance at 

1 April 
2022* 

Movement 
in 

Reserve Commitments 
Proposed 

Movement 

Forecast 
Closing 

Balance at 31 
March 2023 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Haltwhistle Repairs Reserve (0.039) - 0.025 - (0.014) 
Highways Commuted 
Maintenance Funds 

- - - (1.127) (1.127) 

Highways Maintenance 
Investments (0.225) - - - (0.225) 

Home for Ukraine - - - (5.026) (5.026) 

Insurance (8.479) - 0.200 - (8.279) 

Legal Challenge (1.800) - 0.792 - (1.008) 

NCC Economic Regeneration (0.139) - - (0.050) (0.189) 
Open Spaces Maintenance 
Agreements (0.087) (0.007) - - (0.094) 

Parks and Green Spaces - - - (0.250) (0.250) 

Planning Delivery (0.654) - 0.156 (0.565) (1.063) 

Problematic Empty Properties (0.050) 0.002 0.006 - (0.042) 

Recruitment & Retention (0.500) 0.061 - - (0.439) 
Regeneration Additional 
Capacity Reserve (0.190) - 0.190 (0.385) (0.385) 

Regeneration Development 
Reserve (2.473) 0.397 1.588 (1.000) (1.488) 

Repair and Maintenance (0.250) - - - (0.250) 
Replacement of Defective 
Street Lanterns - - - (2.930) (2.930) 

Restructuring Reserve (2.000) - 1.367 - (0.633) 

Revenue Grants (17.333) 7.630 (1.628) - (11.331) 

School Libraries (0.007) - - - (0.007) 

Sealodge (0.023) - 0.016 - (0.007) 

Section 106 (10.830) 0.003 (4.173) - (15.000) 

Severe Weather (7.500) - - - (7.500) 

Social Fund (2.936) - 2.528 - (0.408) 

Page 84

https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Haltwhistle_Repairs_Reserve!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Insurance!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Legal_Challenge!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#NCC_Economic_Regeneration!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Open_Spaces_Maintenance!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Open_Spaces_Maintenance!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Problematic_Empty_Properties!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Regeneration_Additional_Capacit!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Regeneration_Additional_Capacit!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Regeneration_Development_Reserv!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Regeneration_Development_Reserv!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Restructuring_Reserve!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Revenue_Grants!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Sealodge!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#School_Libraries!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Section_106!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Severe_Weather!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Social_Fund!A1


Appendix R 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 67 

 

Opening 
Balance at 

1 April 
2022* 

Movement 
in 

Reserve Commitments 
Proposed 

Movement 

Forecast 
Closing 

Balance at 31 
March 2023 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Sports Development (0.253) - (0.010) - (0.263) 

Storm Arwen (2.178) 1.701 0.352 - (0.125) 
Strategic Management 
Reserve (48.237) - (2.145) 0.615 (49.767) 

Transformation of the 
Revenues & Benefits Service (0.215) - - - (0.215) 

Violence Reduction (0.030) 0.011 (0.020) - (0.039) 

Winter Services (2.000) - - - (2.000) 
Women’s Safety in Public 
Places - - - (0.020) (0.020) 

Total Earmarked Reserves (183.150) 22.865 7.788 (11.470) (163.967) 

Total Usable Reserves (361.751) 22.865 41.621 (11.470) (308.735) 
  

Page 85

https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Sports_Development!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Strategic_Management_Reserve!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Strategic_Management_Reserve!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Violence_Reduction!A1
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-US&wopisrc=https:%2F%2Fnorthumberland365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FFin-CorporateFinance%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F8874f8e495514a6f93c0d396a194b008&wdpid=45d88221&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=6FF1DF9F-3093-3000-0B75-16D2648F5737&wdorigin=Other&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v1&newsession=1&corrid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&usid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&sftc=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush&preseededsessionkey=18397e86-38e6-5e61-3884-2cf32c710650&preseededwacsessionid=730efe1d-09b4-cebf-8ba7-7c15eae22c2f&rct=Medium&ctp=LeastProtected#Winter_Services!A1


Appendix R 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 68 

 

Opening 
Balance at 

1 April 2022* 
Movement 

in Provision Commitments 

 

 

  Proposed 
Movement 

Forecast 
Closing 

Balance at 
31 March 2023 

  £m £m £m £m £m 

Provisions          

NNDR Appeals (8.699) - - - (8.699) 

Estates Rationalisation Project (0.577) - - - (0.577) 

Compensation Claims (0.147) - 0.068 - (0.079) 

Contractor Claims (0.233) - (0.097) - (0.330) 

Total Provisions (9.656) - (0.029) - (9.685) 

       

Total Reserves & Provisions (371.407) 22.865 41.592 (11.470) (289.187) 
 
*Provisional un-audited opening balance figure 

Page 86

file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'NNDR%252520Appeals'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Estate%252520Rationalisation%252520Proj'!A1
file:///C:/Users/Kyle.Reardon/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/B0879313.xlsx%23'Compensation%252520Claims'!A1


Appendix S 

Cabinet 9 May 2023  Page 69 

Virements January to March 2023 

Directorate Reason for Virement Virement from Virement to £ 

There were no virements to report. 
 

 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



19 May 2023 

 
 
 

Northumberland County Council  
 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Work Programme and Monitoring Report 2023-2024 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sean Nicholson: 01670 622605 – Sean.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk 
 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



19 May 2023 

1. Terms of reference: 
  

(1) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Annual Budget and Budgetary Management via the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 
(2) To review the state of Northumberland and the County Council’s activity in delivering its Corporate Plan. 
 
(3) To maintain an overview of the Council’s performance management arrangements; highlighting areas of poor performance 

and monitoring recovery delivery plans. 
 
(4) To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the Council and Advance Northumberland. 
 
(5) To monitor, review and make recommendations about: 
 

• Corporate Services: Organisational Development, Health and Safety, ICT Strategy, Corporate Governance, Financial 
Services, Procurement Strategy, Risk Strategy, Shared and Traded Services  

• Partnership development coordination with local organisations 
• Relationships with external bodies  
• Regeneration and Economic Development  
• Strategic Transport Network and Infrastructure  
• Employability, Skills, and removing barriers to work  
• Capital Programme and Asset Management  
• Support to VCS organisations and the Council’s relationship with town and parish councils.  

 
To be Timetabled: 
 
This will include the OSC being more proactive in early stage development work in formulating new policies and strategies; to 
investigate matters of interest and concern to the wider community, and to keep under review the performance and financial 
position of the Council. 
 

• Capital Programme (monitoring slippage) 
• BEST (monitor progress within the Programme) 
• Economic Development 

 
 

  

P
age 90



19 May 2023 

 
Northumberland County Council 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2023-2024 
 

 
26 June 2023 

 
Presentations from Executive 
Directors/Portfolio Holders on 
Forthcoming Issues 
 
Financial Performance 2022/23 (Position 
at end of February 2023) - Provisional 
Outturn 2022/23 
 
Debt Recovery Update 
 

To receive an overview on forthcoming issues within the remit of the OSC and to discuss with 
the Committee how they can collaborate with the Administration to achieve the Council’s 
priorities and to monitor the performance of its services. 
 
To review the position as at the end of February 2023 
 
 
 
To provide the Committee with information regarding the level of outstanding debt owed to the 
Council and to give assurance as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its collection and 
recovery policies and systems. 
. 

 
25 September 2023 
 

Northumberland Lottery 
 
Annual Workforce Report 
 

To consider the performance of the Northumberland Lottery. 
 
To provide an annual position statement in relation to strategic workforce related areas of 
assurance, workstreams/associated action plans and progress to date within key areas for 
Northumberland County Council for the full financial year of 2022/23. 
 

 
27 November 2023 
 
  

 
 

 
29 January 2024 

P
age 91



19 May 2023 

 
Debt Recovery Update 
 

To provide the Committee with information regarding the level of outstanding debt owed to the 
Council and to give assurance as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its collection and 
recovery policies and systems. 
 

 
25 March 2024 

 
  

 
  

P
age 92



19 May 2023 

 

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	3 MINUTES
	PRESENT
	COUNCILLORS
	OFFICERS

	5 FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS
	6 PRESENTATIONS FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ON FORTHCOMING ISSUES
	7 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2022-23 – POSITION AT THE END OF FEBRUARY 2023 (PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2022-23)
	9 WORK PROGRAMME

